
Planning and Zoning Commission Meeting 
 

June 8, 2021 
 

7:00 p.m. – City Hall and Via Videoconference 
 

NOTICE:   *Due to the Health Officer’s orders for safety, public meetings and public 
comment during public meetings will require modification.  The City of Smithville is 
committed to transparent public meetings and will continue this commitment during the 
COVID-19 crisis.  Anyone who wishes to view the meeting may do so in real time as it 
will be streamed live on the city’s YouTube page through YouTube Live.   
 

1. Call to Order 
 

2. Approve the May 11, 2021 Planning Commission Minutes 
 

3. Staff Report 
 

4. Public Hearing   
 

 Single Phase Final Plat – Mitchell’s Greenhouse & Nursery Plat 2, a replat of Lot 1 
to create 2 new lots (3 total) 

 
5. Mitchell’s Greenhouse & Nursery 2nd Plat – 13500 N. 169 Hwy  

 
6. Public Hearing: 

 
Single Phase Final Plat - Kylee Acres Final Plat to create an additional lot (2 lots) 

 
7. Kylee Acres Final Plat – 2000 NE 132nd 

 
8. Public Hearing – Rezoning 18420 Eagle Parkway from R-1P and R-2P with a 

conceptual plan to R-1D Single Family Small Lot  
 

9. Rezoning 18420 Eagle Parkway to R-1D Single Family Small Lot 
 

10. Public Hearing  
 

Preliminary Plat – Lakeside Farms (formerly Eagle Heights) subdivision to create 
261 single family lots 
 



 

Posted by Jack Hendrix, Dev. Dir.,           June 2, 2021  3:00 p.m.           Accommodations Upon Request 
107 W. Main St., Smithville, MO  64089 

 

11. Preliminary Plat Approval – Lakeside Farms (formerly Eagle Heights) to create 
261 single family lots 

 
12. Medical Marijuana Facility Site Plan Review  

 
13. KCI RV Storage Site Plan Amendment 

 
14. Herzog Foundation Site Plan Amendment - Cabins 

 
15. Adjourn 

 



NOT YET APPROVED

SMITHVILLE PLANNING COMMISSION 

REGULAR SESSION 
May 11, 2021 

7:00 P.M. 
Council Chambers 

Due to the COVID-19 pandemic this meeting was held via the Zoom 
meeting app. City staff were at City Hall for the meeting.   

Planning and Zoning Commission members attended via the Zoom meeting 
app.  The meeting was streamed live on the city’s YouTube page through 
YouTube Live.   

Those attending the meeting: Deb Dotson, Alderman John Chevalier, Dennis 
Kathcart, Carmen Xavier, Connor Samenus, Mayor Damien Boley, Chairman 
Rand Smith, and Development Director Jack Hendrix.  

1. CALL TO ORDER
Chairman Rand Smith called the meeting to order at 7:04 p.m.

2. MINUTES
The March 9, 2021 Meeting Minutes were moved for approval by MAYOR
BOLEY, Seconded by XAVIER.

Ayes 6, Noes 0, Abstained 1 (Alderman Chevalier). Motion carried.

3. STAFF REPORT

HENDRIX reported:

Since January 1, 2021 we have issued 25 single family home permits. For
2020 we issued a total of 50 single family home permits for the entire year,
so we are still a little bit ahead.

President Biden has discussed potentially putting an executive order out that
relates to federal funding which then relates to inclusionary or exclusionary
zoning. If you google this you can get some understanding of what this



NOT YET APPROVED

means. In Smithville we have a staggard system in place that could be 
considered to be exclusionary zoning but some of the items that we are 
working on tonight addresses those issues. If President Biden does sign this 
executive order it could potentially impact how we are federally funded on 
items.  
 
In November 2020, the Board of Alderman adopted the 2018 Property 
Maintenance Code. They also adopted staff recommendation to no longer 
allow people to park their cars in grass areas.  This is because it creates 
other problems such as; grass not getting mowed around them or tracking 
mud into the streets, etc.  Jack highlighted that the city has a very old 
zoning code prevision related to RV parking which says they can park in 
grass. The old is zoning law, and the newly adopted is nuisance. These are 
separate and distinct. The newly adopted prevails always. The question Jack  
asked was, in the coming months do we eliminate the zoning law regarding 
RV parking and not address where they can be parked? This was last 
brought up in 2005 as a commercial vehicle parking issue. Somehow it got 
convoluted into RV parking. There are people on both sides of the issue and 
are very vocal. This is a very controversial issue that needs to be addressed. 
The other aspect is, we have provisions in our current code that prohibits 
commercial vehicles from parking overnight in the residential districts but 
only on the streets. They are only permitted to park the RVs in their 
driveway. This is a zoning uses issue. We get regular complaints about 
tractor trailers parked in the streets and driveways in residential 
subdivisions. Jack asked the commission to think about these issues and 
whether or not it is something they want to address them in future 
meetings.  

 
 Commercial construction is still moving along. Burger King has pulled their 

permit and has started construction. Domino’s pizza has pulled its permit 
but has not started construction inside the strip mall at the Marketplace. 
Jack anticipates that the medical marijuana facility will be coming before this 
commission for site plan approve soon. He believes that there will likely be a 
site plan change at KCI RV Storage for different uses in various areas. Attic 
Storage is preparing for permit approval to start the construction of the 
secondary buildings in the back. They will also be coming forward for a 
subdivision of land so that the medical marijuana dispensary can have a 
separate lot.   

 
 The Main Street trail project has been completed and the grass is coming in 

nicely. Streetscape phase east from Commercial Street to the trail has 



NOT YET APPROVED

started construction. It is looking like completion for that will be sometime in 
September. You will be able to go from City Hall to Smith’s Fork Park either 
by walking or biking.  

 
 MAYOR BOLEY stated that the Herzog Foundation is also moving along 

pretty quickly. Will the second phase of this come before this commission? 
 

HENDRIX stated yes, it will come back to this commission for the site plan 
approval for the proposed cabins in the back of the property.  

 
 SMITH asked if anything is going to be built on the property where they just 

took the strip mall down piece by piece. It’s located by Central Bank on the 
south end of town.  

 
 HENDRIX stated that nothing has been submitted to the city yet. The 

property is still for sale. Several people have been close to purchasing it but 
none of the deals have gone through.  

 
 MAYOR BOLEY stated that the shelter at Helvey has been completed. The 

Kiwanis Club built it. It’s a cedar and steel structure. They spent a lot of 
money on it and it looks nice. They have a few things they want to add and 
are planning to have a ribbon cutting in July. The playground at Heritage 
Park is complete and they are getting ready to start on the basketball court. 

 
 

 
4. PUBLIC HEARING (FOUR SEPARATE PUBLIC HEARINGS): 

 SET INITIAL ZONING FOR 2416 NE 157TH TERR 
 SET INITIAL ZONING FOR 15719 N CHESTNUT ST 
 SET INITIAL ZONING FOR 2224 NE 158TH ST 
 SET INITIAL ZONING FOR 2402 NE 158TH ST 

 
 HENDRIX stated we have 4 properties in the Lakeside Crossing subdivision 

that recently annexed into the city. We now need to set the initial Smithville 
zoning for them. Each of the 4 lots will require their own public hearing.  

 
 
 2416 NE 157th Terr:  
 
 Public Hearing: None 
 



NOT YET APPROVED

 Public Hearing closed 
 
 
 15719 N Chestnut St: 
 
 Public Hearing: None 
 
 Public Hearing closed 
 
 
 2224 NE 158TH ST: 
 
 Public Hearing: None 
 
 Public Hearing closed 
 
 
 2402 NE 158TH ST: 
 
 Public Hearing: None  
 
 Public Hearing closed 
 
 
5. ZONING FOUR LOTS IN LAKESIDE CROSSING TO R-1B (0NE 

ORDINANCE RECOMMENDATION)  
 

SAMENUS motioned to approve the Finding of Facts and initial zoning for 
the four lots in Lakeside Crossing to R-1B. Seconded by XAVIER.  
 
DISCUSSION: None 
 
THE VOTE: DOTSON-AYE, MAYOR BOLEY-AYE, KATHCART-AYE, SMITH-
AYE, SAMENUS-AYE, ALDERMAN CHEVALIER-AYE, XAVIER-AYE.  
 
AYES-7, NOES-0. MOTION PASSED 

 
 
6. PUBLIC HEARING: AN ORDINANCE AMENDING SECTIONS 400.090 

TO 400.150 OF THE ZONING CODE PERTAINING TO DWELLING 



NOT YET APPROVED

UNIT SIZES AND LOT SIZES IN THE AGRICULTURAL AND 
RESIDENTIAL DISTRICTS. 

 
 Public Hearing:  
 
 Eric Craig: 106 W Main Street Smithville, MO 64089: Stated that 

everyone is aware of the increase in material costs and what that is doing in 
effect to the market. On the majority of the homes they build, in simple 
lumber increases we have seen anywhere from a $35,000 to $60,000 
increase in pricing for the same home we were building 12 months ago. He 
doesn’t foresee a lot of this to change. There has been a domino effect with 
other building material costs rising as well because of this. He believes 
because of this you will see families looking for smaller homes. Some worry 
that smaller homes will be cheap and inexpensive homes, but you really will 
not see new construction homes under $300,000 if this kind of change is not 
made.  

 
 MAYOR BOLEY asked what the current cost per square foot to build? 
 
 MR. CRAIG stated it about $185.00 a square foot. A year ago, we were 

about $95.00 to $100.00.  
 
 MAYOR BOLEY stated that basically for a 1,100 square foot home you’re not 

building it for under $200,000. 
 
 MR. CRAIG stated that is correct. Even if you were to put it on a slab. Slab 

means there is no foundation.  
 
 DOTSON asked if the $185.00 per square foot included the foundation. 
 
 MR. CRAIG stated that it does.  
 
 HENDRIX stated that cost is for a 1,100 square foot house but does not 

include the cost of the land.  
 
 MR. CRAIG stated this cost does not include the cost of permits, cost of the 

lot, real estate commission, or builder’s commission. It is just true hard cost 
of materials and labor only.  

 
 MAYOR BOLEY asked what our current inventory look like in Smithville? 
 



NOT YET APPROVED

 MR. CRAIG stated that there are currently 6 homes for sale in the Smithville 
School District. 

 
 HENDRIX asked if once a house is put on the market if they sell really 

quick? 
 
 MR. CRAIG stated that they are basically selling homes within the first day 

they are put on the market and they typically have multiple offers in all price 
points. Lower price point homes (anything under $300,000) are seeing 5-10 
offers on a listing. And then anything over $300,000 to $500,000 they are 
seeing 1 to 3 offers on a listing. He noted he just listed a house at $675,000 
on small acreage in Smithville and he had 2 offers within the first day of it 
being on the market.  

 
SMITH asked if most are still going for more that the asking price? 
 
MR. CRAIG stated that anything under $300,000 is going for more than the 
asking price. But offers on homes that are more than $300,000 are coming 
in right around that. Buyers are removing their contingencies for appraisal 
and inspections to make their offer stronger.  
 
XAVIER asked if there is any activity for any low income housing here at this 
point? Or is that not lucrative for developers? 
 
MR. CRAIG stated that it is not lucrative for developers. Just the 
development cost to put in a developed lot is expensive as well. You are 
lucky if you can get a developed lot in for $40,000. Depending on certain 
circumstances it could be as high as $70,000 per lot. Because of the shift we 
are seeing affordability is always key for people. Now because material costs 
are so high it is just going to go in this direction. People have a perception 
that back in 2008 to 2010 when the real estate market crashed that homes 
kind of corrected themselves and prices did too. He was selling new 
construction homes during that time and the materials never really 
corrected themselves, but labor did. So, what you had was subcontractors 
who were merely trying to work to pay for their home and to put food on 
the table, but materials never corrected. He said he does believe that 
lumber prices will go down, but once price points go up you really do not 
see these huge drops, so he believes we are going to be stuck in this 
scenario for quite some time.  
 



NOT YET APPROVED

DOTSON asked what Mr. Craig attributes the cost of skyrocketing materials? 
Supply line disruptions? 
 
MR. CRAIG stated that most of it is from supply line disruptions. We are not 
getting lumber in from Canada like we were. COVID is a factor. He believes 
that the mills are just not releasing the lumber like they should. There could 
also be some price gouging. It also could be from one supplier raising their 
prices and then it is like a domino effect and everybody starts to hit the 
consumer. As long as interest rates are favorable and low the consumer will 
still probably end up paying these prices. When people think about smaller 
homes they think the quality is different, but the home still has to be built 
per code. It just going to be a smaller scale of a product that the public is 
already receiving, which is a good product, the inspectors also do a great 
job making sure the consumer is protected. What we are really trying to do 
is give an opportunity for affordability for someone to have a new home.  
 
DOTSON asked him to define affordable. 
 
MR. CRAIG stated it is what someone can afford. Right now, with the way 
pricing is, you will not see a single family new construction home under 
$300,000. Homes in the Diamond Crest subdivision were $90,000 to 
$100,000 when they were built. The Wildflower subdivision was in the low 
$200,000 when they were built and were now recently selling for $265,000.  
 
KATHKART stated that this kind of goes along with our efforts to provide 
housing for teachers, fire fighters and police officers.  

 
 Public Hearing closed 
 
 
7. AMENDING SECTIONS 400.090 TO 400.150 OF THE ZONING CODE. 
 

MAYOR BOLEY motioned to approve amending sections 400.090 to 400.150 
of the zoning code. Seconded by XAVIER.  
 
DISCUSSION:  
 
HENDRIX stated that he put something different in the ordinance language. 
It is the fourth whereas clause and it is the finding you all would need to 
make on this. Our code of ordinances says: 
 



NOT YET APPROVED

WHEREAS, the Planning Commission believes that these changes are necessary 
due to changed and changing conditions of the real estate market and the specific 
provision of the 2030 Comprehensive Plan. 
 
HENDRIX stated that he has identified the changes in the real estate market and 
the provisions of our Comprehensive Plan in the packet that the commission has 
received. Specifically in the Comprehensive Plan it talks about getting rid of the 
dwelling unit size issues in multi-family. Approval of this ordinance, either as it sits 
or any other amended version, would be recommendation to the Board that this 
commission believes these changes are necessary because of these reasons.  
 
ALDERMAN CHEVALIER stated that he was not on this commission when it was 
discussed in March and it trying to catch up. He asked for a little clarification on 
what we are trying to do here.  
 
HENDIRX stated that there are 2 layers of changes. The first change is that we are 
adding 2 new zoning districts. The first one is the R-1C district which will have a 
60 foot wide lot and then R-1D which is a 50 foot wide lot. Currently, R-1B is our 
smallest single family lot and it’s 75 feet wide, unless you go through a Conceptual 
Plan Overlay process. During his staff report he also mention the inclusionary and 
exclusionary zoning. This is a way to move us towards more inclusionary zoning to 
allow multiple markets in the same area. With these new zoning districts and 
current zoning districts, when someone brings property to be zoned, this 
commission will have to go through the Findings of Facts process to see how that 
would impact the housing around it. The second change is the dwelling unit size 
requirement. In single family homes we have a 1,100 square foot minimum. In 
multi-family we currently have it at 900 square foot minimum for an apartment. 
That is a massive apartment and is probably one of the reasons why we don’t 
have too many apartments in Smithville. 900 square feet is the average size for a 
3 bedroom apartment. At our meeting in March, the commissions general 
discussion was to set it at 400 square foot minimum for multi-family. It also 
allowed us to make some adjustments in our current code.  
 
ALDERMAN CHEVALIER stated that we are talking about affordability and providing 
homes for people who work jobs that are critical to us, but they can’t even live 
here. He appreciates fixing the lots sizes but if a house can’t be built cheaply, 
under $300,000, what is this 1,100 square foot going to do to fix this? Are there 
other options to maybe reduce this or is there other options for maybe someone 
who wants tiny homes which is a new craze these days?  
 
HENDRIX stated that in some of the multi-family districts do provide a reduced 
scenario. In the R-3 multi-family dwelling district, the minimum dwelling unit sizes 
went down to 800 square foot if its single family attached or detached. As far as 
tiny houses, we don’t have a district that would really support those other than if a 



NOT YET APPROVED

tiny house was an apartment complex. We have basically been in a scenario where 
we have only had new people moving into Smithville. Young people who are from 
here and getting done with college really couldn’t afford to come back into 
Smithville and there was no place to rent. Clay Creek built 31 units of 4 plex’s in 
18 months and were 100% rented immediately. And they are not cheap either.  
 
ALDERMAN CHEVALIER stated that he understands for apartments and things like 
that but is curios if we could squeeze more homes into a subdivision, would those 
be able to be marketed towards the lower income folks? He asked Mr. Craig what 
his thoughts are on this. 
 
MR. CRAIG stated he sees and understands where Alderman Chevalier is going 
with this. What you are going to see is something similar to what happened in the 
1980’s where interest rates were extremely high, and it cause affordability issues 
and you then saw a lot of multi-family being built. That is really when duplexes 
started taking off. He thinks that in order to hit a price point under $300,000, that 
is really going to come in a duplex style unit which again is going to come into play 
with affordability purposes. What you are looking at approving will allow flexibility 
for developers to put in more lots. The cost with developing a lot is all about curb 
distance which is where the utilities and everything is. Having smaller lots is not a 
bad thing and will allow the lot cost to go down which would then be more 
affordable for the consumer. Then the square footage size going down is going to 
allow them to hit a lower price point. What is being put in front of you all is 
allowing options for housing.  
 
MAYOR BOLEY thanked everyone on this commission and City staff for even 
indulging this and talking through this. He said that when he first brought this up 
to Mr. Hendrix and in the past these conversations have not gone well. He felt like 
this has been a good discussion. He doesn’t see hundreds of people showing up 
for public comment which is also a good indicator that the community is willing to 
entertain this. 
 
THE VOTE: DOTSON-AYE, MAYOR BOLEY-AYE, KATHCART-AYE, 
ALDERMAN CHEVALIER-AYE, SAMENUS-AYE, XAVIER-AYE, SMITH-AYE.  
 
AYES-7, NOES-0. MOTION PASSED 

 
 
8. ADJOURN   
 

 
 DOTSON made a motion to adjourn.  XAVIER seconded the motion. 

 



NOT YET APPROVED

VOICE VOTE:  UNANIMOUS 
 

SMITH declared the session adjourned at 7:52 p.m. 



 
 

June 2, 2021 
Initial zoning of Clay County Parcel Id # 09-204-00-01-011.01 

 
 
Application for a Plat Approval – Mitchell’s Greenhouse & Nursery 2nd Plat – 3 lots  
 
 Code Sections: 

425.285.A.4      Single Phase Final Plat Approval 
 
Property Information: 
   Address:  13500 N 169  
   Owner:  Mitchell’s Greenhouse & Nursery Inc.  
   Current Zoning: B-3 Conceptual Plan 
 
Public Notice Dates: 
 
1st Publication in Newspaper:  May 20, 2021 
Letters to Property Owners w/in 185’: May 21, 2021 
 
GENERAL DESCRIPTION: 
 
 The property is currently Lot 1 of Mitchell’s Greenhouse and Nursery 
subdivision.  This subdivision was created with a conceptual plan to authorize 
lots inside the property to not meet the street frontage requirements of the 
zoning and subdivision codes.  The conceptual plan was created specifically for 
the purpose of authorizing multiple buildings using a private drive in primarily 
commercial or mixed-use developments.  The purpose of the current subdivision 
is to divide the original lot 1 building, now Besame Medical Marijuana Dispensary 
from the remaining land, and to further divide that land into two separate lots.  
The development will create a new lot 1 that is substantially reduced, but still 
maintain public access through shared use areas, as well as two new lots to 
handle both the new Attic Storage of Smithville, and to allow future development 
of the third lot.   
 



 
GUIDELINES FOR REVIEW – SINGLE PHASE SUBDIVISION FINAL PLATS See 
425.285.A.4 
 
The Planning Commission shall consider the following criteria in making a 
recommendation on the plat: 
a. The plat conforms to these regulations and the applicable provisions of the 
Zoning Ordinance and other land use regulations.  Yes, the layout complies 
w ith zoning and subdivision requirements. 
b. The plat represents an overall development pattern that is consistent with the 
goals and policies of the Comprehensive Plan. The Development pattern is 
similar to the existing zoning on the property. 
c. The development shall be laid out in such a way as to result in: 
 (1) Good natural surface drainage to a storm sewer or a natural 
watercourse.  The property is generally graded for development w ith a 
single, pre-approved detention basin.  All proposed buildings on Lot 3 
have been approved for use of the ex isting detention basin.  Any 
development on Lot 4 would require an additional stormwater report.   
 (2) A minimum amount of grading on both cut or fill and preservation of 
good trees and other desirable natural growth.  Again, grading of the 
development is complete in accordance w ith a previously approved site 
plan.          
 (3) A good grade relationship with the abutting streets, preferably 
somewhat above the street.    Each lot w ill have access through the 
development in accordance w ith an approved Conceptual P lan.   
 (4)  Adequate lot width for the type or size of dwellings contemplated, 
including adequate side yards for light, air, access and privacy.  NA. 
 (5) Adequate lot depth for outdoor living space.  N/ A. 
 (6) Generally regular lot shapes, avoiding acute angles.  Yes. 



 (7) Adequate building lots that avoid excessive grading, footings or 
foundation walls.  Yes. 
d. The plat contains lot and land subdivision layout that is consistent with good 
land planning and site engineering design principles.  Yes. 
 
e. The location, spacing and design of proposed streets, curb cuts and 
intersections are consistent with good traffic engineering design principles. 
There are no new  roadways as the existing lots are on existing 
blacktop.  
f. The plat is served or will be served at the time of development with all 
necessary public utilities and facilities, including, but not limited to, water, sewer, 
gas, electric and telephone service, schools, parks, recreation and open space 
and libraries.  Yes, the development w ill be for septic sewers on all lots, 
and all utilit ies are available at the street frontage.   
g. The plat shall comply with the stormwater regulations of the City and all 
applicable storm drainage and floodplain regulations to ensure the public health 
and safety of future residents of the subdivision and upstream and downstream 
properties and residents. The Commission shall expressly find that the amount of 
off-site stormwater runoff after development will be no greater than the amount 
of off-site stormwater runoff before development.  The proposed 
development meets this standard. 
h. Each lot in the plat of a residential development has adequate and safe access 
to/from a local street. N/ A  
i. The plat is located in an area of the City that is appropriate for current 
development activity; it will not contribute to sprawl nor to the need for 
inefficient extensions and expansions of public facilities, utilities and services.  
Yes. 
j. If located in an area proposed for annexation to the City, the area has been 
annexed prior to, or will be annexed simultaneously with plat approval.  
Annexed. 
k. The applicant agrees to dedicate land, right-of-way and easements, as may be 
determined to be needed, to effectuate the purposes of these regulations and 
the standards and requirements incorporated herein.  Yes, the plat includes 
the required dedications.   
l. All applicable submission requirements have been satisfied in a timely manner.  
Yes. 
m. The applicant agrees to provide additional improvements, which may include 
any necessary upgrades to adjacent or nearby existing roads and other facilities 
to current standards and shall include dedication of adequate rights-of-way to 
meet the needs of the City's transportation plans.  Existing development.  
 
STAFF RECOMMENDATION: 
 



 Staff recommends APPROVAL of the proposed Final Plat based upon 
adherence to the conditions contained in this report.    
 
Respectfully Submitted, 
 
 
___________________________ 
Director of Development 
 



OFFICIAL NOTICE 
 

To whom it may concern and to all parties interested, notice is hereby given that 
at 7:00 PM on June 8, 2021, the Smithville Planning Commission will conduct 
virtual public hearings (online via Zoom) and consider the following: 
 
 An Application for a single-phase Final Plat for an additional, 2 lots to be 
called Mitchell’s Greenhouse & Nursery 2nd Plat on property legally described as 
follows: 
 
 Beginning 10’ East of the Northeast corner of Lot 1, Oak Hill subdivision in 
the City of Smithville, thence West 1,271.79 feet, thence Northwesterly 689.98 
feet, thence North 20 feet, thence East to the west line of 169 Hwy, thence 
along said Right of Way to the Point of Beginning. 
 
The property is commonly known as 13518 N 169 Hwy as depicted here: 
 

  
 
As provided in the Zoning Ordinances of Smithville, Mo. the above item will be 
discussed and considered by the Planning Commission, and all persons interested 
in said matter will be heard at this time concerning their views and wishes; and 
any protest of the provisions of the proposed changes to the Zoning Ordinance 
will be considered by the Commission as provided by law. 
 
NOTICE:   *Due to construction at City Hall and the Health Officer’s orders for 
safety, public meetings and public comment during public meetings will require 
modification.  The City of Smithville is committed to transparent public meetings 
and will continue this commitment.  Anyone who wishes to view the meeting 
may do so in real time as it will be streamed live on the city’s Youtube page.   
 



For Public Comment, please email your request to the City Clerk at 
ldrummond@smithvillemo.org prior to the meeting to be invited via Zoom to 
access the meeting via internet or phone. 
 
Publish in the May 20th Edition of the CT 





 
 

June 2, 2021 
Initial zoning of Clay County Parcel Id # 09-304-00-01-007.05 

 
 
Application for a Plat Approval – Kylee Acres Final Plat – 2 lots  
 
 Code Sections: 

425.285.A.4      Single Phase Final Plat Approval 
 
Property Information: 
   Address:  2000 NE 132nd St.  
   Owner:  Eric Dunham  
   Current Zoning: A-1 
 
Public Notice Dates: 
 
1st Publication in Newspaper:  May 20, 2021 
Letters to Property Owners w/in 185’: May 21, 2021 
 
GENERAL DESCRIPTION: 
 
 The property is approximately a 63-acre parcel with a single-family home.  
The proposal is to divide 10 acres from the southeast corner of the lot (abutting 
132nd St.) and leave approximately 53 acres and the existing home.  The 
proposed subdivision would leave two lots of not less than 10 acres and not less 
than 300’ of road frontage in compliance with the zoning and subdivision codes.  
 
GUIDELINES FOR REVIEW – SINGLE PHASE SUBDIVISION FINAL PLATS See 
425.285.A.4 
 
The Planning Commission shall consider the following criteria in making a 
recommendation on the plat: 
a. The plat conforms to these regulations and the applicable provisions of the 
Zoning Ordinance and other land use regulations.  Yes, the layout complies 
w ith zoning and subdivision requirements. 



b. The plat represents an overall development pattern that is consistent with the 
goals and policies of the Comprehensive Plan. The Development pattern is 
similar to the existing zoning on the property. 
c. The development shall be laid out in such a way as to result in: 
 (1) Good natural surface drainage to a storm sewer or a natural 
watercourse.  The property is naturally suited for development on the 10 
acres.   
 (2) A minimum amount of grading on both cut or fill and preservation of 
good trees and other desirable natural growth.  No significant grading is 
needed for one home and outbuildings.   
 (3) A good grade relationship with the abutting streets, preferably 
somewhat above the street.    Each lot w ill have access to 132nd St.   
 (4)  Adequate lot width for the type or size of dwellings contemplated, 
including adequate side yards for light, air, access and privacy.  Yes. 
 (5) Adequate lot depth for outdoor living space.  Yes. 
 (6) Generally regular lot shapes, avoiding acute angles.  Yes. 
 (7) Adequate building lots that avoid excessive grading, footings or 
foundation walls.  Yes. 
d. The plat contains lot and land subdivision layout that is consistent with good 
land planning and site engineering design principles.  Yes. 
 
e. The location, spacing and design of proposed streets, curb cuts and 
intersections are consistent with good traffic engineering design principles. 
There are no new  roadways as the existing lots are on existing 
blacktop.  
f. The plat is served or will be served at the time of development with all 
necessary public utilities and facilities, including, but not limited to, water, sewer, 
gas, electric and telephone service, schools, parks, recreation and open space 
and libraries.  Yes, the development w ill be for septic sewers on all lots, 
and all utilit ies are available at the street frontage.   
g. The plat shall comply with the stormwater regulations of the City and all 
applicable storm drainage and floodplain regulations to ensure the public health 
and safety of future residents of the subdivision and upstream and downstream 
properties and residents. The Commission shall expressly find that the amount of 
off-site stormwater runoff after development will be no greater than the amount 
of off-site stormwater runoff before development.  The proposed 
development meets this standard. 
h. Each lot in the plat of a residential development has adequate and safe access 
to/from a local street. N/ A  
i. The plat is located in an area of the City that is appropriate for current 
development activity; it will not contribute to sprawl nor to the need for 
inefficient extensions and expansions of public facilities, utilities and services.  
Yes. 



j. If located in an area proposed for annexation to the City, the area has been 
annexed prior to, or will be annexed simultaneously with plat approval.  
Annexed. 
k. The applicant agrees to dedicate land, right-of-way and easements, as may be 
determined to be needed, to effectuate the purposes of these regulations and 
the standards and requirements incorporated herein.  Yes, the plat includes 
the required dedications, and prior to recording the Final P lat, Park 
fees in the amount of $1,250.00 must be paid.   
l. All applicable submission requirements have been satisfied in a timely manner.  
Yes. 
m. The applicant agrees to provide additional improvements, which may include 
any necessary upgrades to adjacent or nearby existing roads and other facilities 
to current standards and shall include dedication of adequate rights-of-way to 
meet the needs of the City's transportation plans.  No improvements are 
necessary for one new lot.  
 

 
STAFF RECOMMENDATION: 
 
 Staff recommends APPROVAL of the proposed Final Plat based upon 
adherence to the conditions contained in this report.    
 
Respectfully Submitted, 
 
 
___________________________ 
Director of Development 
 



OFFICIAL NOTICE 
 

To whom it may concern and to all parties interested, notice is hereby given that 
at 7:00 PM on June 8, 2021, the Smithville Planning Commission will conduct 
virtual public hearings (online via Zoom) and consider the following: 
 
 An Application for a single phase Final Plat for a new, 2 lot subdivision to 
be called Kylee Acres on 63+/- acres on property legally described as follows: 
 
Commencing at the Center of Section 12, Township 52 North, Range 33 West, 
Smithville, Clay County, Missouri; thence with the South line of the Northeast 
Quarter of said Section, South 89 degrees 40 minutes 56 seconds East, 169.39 
feet; thence departing from said line North 00 degrees 01 minutes 50 seconds 
East, 50.00 feet to the Point of Beginning; thence continuing along said line 
North 00 degrees 01 minutes 50 seconds East, 1266.90 feet; thence departing 
from said line, North 89 degrees 46 minutes 04 seconds West, 169.14 feet; 
thence North 00 degrees 02 minutes 28 seconds East, 1316.64 feet; thence 
South 89 degrees 50 minutes 36 seconds East, 1317.82 feet; thence South 00 
degrees 15 minutes 17 seconds West, 1675.34 feet; thence North 89 degrees 40 
minutes 56 seconds West, 477.83 feet; thence South 00 degrees 15 minutes 17 
seconds West, 911.62 feet; thence North 89 degrees 40 minutes 56 seconds 
West, 660.98 feet to the point of beginning. 
 
The property is commonly known as 2000 NE 132nd St. as depicted here: 
 

 
The proposed subdivision is depicted here: 



 
As provided in the Zoning Ordinances of Smithville, Mo. the above item will be 
discussed and considered by the Planning Commission, and all persons interested 
in said matter will be heard at this time concerning their views and wishes; and 
any protest of the provisions of the proposed changes to the Zoning Ordinance 
will be considered by the Commission as provided by law. 
 
NOTICE:   *Due to construction at City Hall and the Health Officer’s orders for 
safety, public meetings and public comment during public meetings will require 
modification.  The City of Smithville is committed to transparent public meetings 
and will continue this commitment.  Anyone who wishes to view the meeting 
may do so in real time as it will be streamed live on the city’s Youtube page.   
 
For Public Comment, please email your request to the City Clerk at 
ldrummond@smithvillemo.org prior to the meeting to be invited via Zoom to 
access the meeting via internet or phone. 
 
Publish in the May 20th Edition of the CT 
 





 
 
 

STAFF REPORT 
     May 28, 2021 

Rezoning of Parcel Id # 05-302-00-01-005.00 
 

Application for Rezoning District Classification Amendment   
 
 Code Sections: 

400.560.C     Zoning District Classification Amendments 
 
 Property Information: 
   Address:  18420 Eagle Parkway.  
   Owner:  Eagle Heights Development LLC  
   Current Zoning: R-1P and R-2P with Conceptual Plan  
   Proposed Zoning: R-1D 
 
 Public Notice Dates: 

1st Publication in Newspaper:  May 20, 2021 
Letters to Property Owners w/in 185’: May 21, 2021 

 
GENERAL DESCRIPTION: 
 

 



 
 

 
 The applicant seeks to rezone the subject property to R-1D, a newly 
created zoning district that allows single family housing on smaller lots to 
improve the affordability.  The original plan was to include both single and two-
family housing in the development, but the cost of development and construction 
have increased significantly.  The plan is to provide workforce housing options.  
   
EXISTING ZONING: 
 
 The existing zoning is R-1B and R-2 with a conceptual plan overlay.  
 
CHARACTER OF THE NEIGHBORHOOD 400.560.C.1 
 
 The surrounding area is a mix of agricultural land on the east, west and 
south and a single family subdivision (Wildflower) to the north.  
 
CONSISTENCY WITH COMPREHENSIVE PLAN AND ORDINANCES 400.560.C.2 
 
 The new Comprehensive Plan was approved on November 10th, 2020, 
and formally adopted as the policy of the City on November 17th, 2020.  That 
plan, in section HN1.1 of the Implementation Matrix for housing states “Support 
providing additional housing stock throughout the city of Smithville to meet 
current and future residents needs by encouraging new residential development 
in areas identified in the Future land Use Map.” 
The development is proposed in a newly created district classification because of 
the Comprehensive Plan recommendations. 
 
ADEQUACY OF PUBLIC UTILITIES OR OTHER PUBLIC SERVICES 400.560.C.3 
 
Streets and Sidewalks: 
The site is served by Eagle Parkway to the east, as well as future extensions of 
Wildflower, Indigo and Woodruff St.’s from the north.  Any development must 
construct streets and sidewalks to current standards.      
 
Water, Sewer and Storm water 
The city has adequate water and stormwater infrastructure in this developed 
area.  A stormwater evaluation has clearly shown adequate protections are 
available.  Any subdivision would be required to improve the existing lift station 
for Wildflower and any other offsite infrastructure improvements will be required 
as a part of any development.   
 
All other utilities 



 Future Development will be conditioned upon installation of all needed 
upgraded utilities at the cost of the development.  Prior to recording any 
rezoning, a development agreement as approved by the Board of Aldermen must 
be executed. 
 
SUITABILITY OF THE USES TO WHICH THE PROPERTY HAS BEEN RESTRICTED 
UNDER ITS EXISTING ZONING 400.560.C.4. 
 
The current use farmland, but the zoning is a combination of R-2 and R-1 uses.  
With the skyrocketing costs of home construction additional workforce housing 
could benefit from small lot sizes 
 
TIME THE PROPERTY HAS REMAINED VACANT AS ZONED 400.560.C.5 
 
The property was zoned to the existing district classification in 2018, but since 
that time the development and construction costs have increased significantly 
and no development has yet occurred.   
 
COMPATIBILITY OF PROPOSED DISTRICT WITH NEARBY LAND 400.560.C.6 
 
 The adjacent land on the north is the existing Wildflower subdivision with 
single family homes.  The proposed zoning would also be single-family detached 
housing, just on smaller lots.   
 
EXTENT WHICH THE AMENDMENT MAY DETRIMENTALLY AFFECT NEARBY 
PROPERTY 400.560C.7 
 
 No detrimental effects are known since the cost of any new housing will 
be similar or higher in value to the adjacent housing. 
 
WHETHER THE PROPOSAL HAS A DISPROPORTIONATE GREAT LOSS TO 
ADJOINING PROPERTY OWNERS RELATIVE TO THE PUBLIC GAIN 400.560.C.8 
 
 With no detrimental effects known, no great loss is expected.   
 
STAFF RECOMMENDATION: 
 
 Staff recommends that the rezoning to R-1D be approved contingent upon 
execution of a development agreement as approved by the Board of Aldermen.  
   
Respectfully Submitted, 
 
___________________________ 
Zoning Administrator 



 
 

STAFF REPORT 
     June 2, 2021 

Preliminary Plat of Parcel Id # 05-302-00-01-005.00 
 
 
Application for a Preliminary Plat Approval   
 
 Code Sections: 

425.275. A.3     Preliminary Plat Approval 
 
 Property Information: 
   Address:   18420 Eagle Parkway 
   Owner:   Eagle Heights Development LLC 
   Current Zoning:  R-1P and R-2P  
   Proposed Zoning:  R-1D (Single Family 50’ lot) 
 
 Public Notice Dates: 

Publication in Newspaper:   May 20, 2021 
Letters to Property Owners w/in 185’: May 21, 2021 

 
GENERAL DESCRIPTION: 
 
 The property was previously annexed, rezoned and preliminarily platted 
for a mixed level development in 2018 and 2019.  The Plat included both single- 
and two-family dwelling units for a total of 232 units on 80 acres. Subsequently, 
the city completed its Comprehensive Plan, and development costs have soared.  
The current proposal is subject to a rezoning request to change the zoning to a 
newly created district with smaller lot sizes.  The Board of Aldermen recently 
approved adding two new zoning districts with smaller lot frontage requirements 
(but not changing the dwelling unit sizes) for single family units. 
 
The development proposed is for a new single-family subdivision to be called 
Lakeside Farms and create 261 single family lots.  The proposed zoning district is 
R-1D, which allows lots 50’ or wider.  The proposal is for lots between 55’ and 
56’ generally.  The layout of the streets and green spaces has not changed from 
the existing preliminary plat. 



GUIDELINES FOR REVIEW – PRELIMINARY PLATS See 425.275.A.3 
 
3. Guidelines for review. The Planning Commission shall consider the 
following criteria in making a recommendation on the preliminary plat: 

a. The plat conforms to these regulations and the applicable provisions of the 
Zoning Ordinance and other land use regulations.  Yes. 

b. The plat represents an overall development pattern that is consistent with the 
goals and policies of the Comprehensive Plan.  Proposal is for 261 single 
family houses on a layout the extends the streets of Wildflower into 
this new  subdivision and creates a new  entrance.   

c. The development shall be laid out in such a way as to result in: 

 (1) Good natural surface drainage to a storm sewer or a natural 
watercourse.  The layout of the streets and stormwater detention are the 
same as the existing preliminary plat and has met the stormwater 
requirements of the city.   

 (2) A minimum amount of grading on both cut or fill and preservation of 
good trees and other desirable natural growth.  P lans include leaving the 
trees along the north property line betw een this subdivision and 
Wildflower, as well as the existing trees in the drainage basin to the 
east.   

 (3) A good grade relationship with the abutting streets, preferably 
somewhat above the street.  Entire subdivision is laid out to meet the 
grade requirements.   

 (4) Adequate lot width for the type or size of dwellings contemplated, 
including adequate side yards for light, air, access and privacy.  Lots slightly 
larger than the minimum size allowed in the proposed zone district.   

 (5) Adequate lot depth for outdoor living space. Lot depths are the 
same as currently approved.   

 (6) Generally regular lot shapes, avoiding acute angles.  Meets 
generally accepted engineering principles. 

 (7) Adequate building lots that avoid excessive grading, footings or 
foundation walls.  Meets generally accepted engineering principles. 

d. The plat contains lot and land subdivision layout that is consistent with good 
land planning and site engineering design principles. Meets generally 
accepted engineering principles.  



e. The location, spacing and design of proposed streets, curb cuts and 
intersections are consistent with good traffic engineering design principles. 
Meets generally accepted engineering principles.  

f. The plat is served or will be served at the time of development with all 
necessary public utilities and facilities, including, but not limited to, water, sewer, 
gas, electric and telephone service, schools, parks, recreation and open space 
and libraries in the form of a development agreement.  The developer must 
update the existing Wildflower pump station to handle all of the new  
and existing flows; extend waterlines into the development and loop 
those lines into the existing lines of Wildflower; improve Eagle 
Parkway w ith new  curbs and stormwater infrastructure on the west 
side and construct a new  10-w ide concrete walk ing trail extension 
along the entire Eagle Parkway right of way abutting the property, 
install any additional offsite traffic improvements when triggered by 
the traffic study, and provide additional park fees in accordance w ith 
Section 425.210.  The proposed preliminary plat includes 3.89 acres of 
qualified parkland dedications of the 16.182 acres required.  This 
leaves a pro-rata portion of the $625.00 per unit park fee at $474.75 
for each of the 261 units.  This translates into a park funding 
requirement of $123,911.29 to be paid w ith each Final P lat or 
Development agreement as approved by the Board of Aldermen.   

g. The plat shall comply with the storm water regulations of the City and all 
applicable storm drainage and floodplain regulations to ensure the public health 
and safety of future residents of the subdivision and upstream and downstream 
properties and residents. The Commission shall expressly find that the amount of 
off-site storm water runoff after development will be no greater than the amount 
of off-site storm water runoff before development.  Meets generally accepted 
engineering principles, and final design and construction requirements 
are met prior to final plat approval. 

h. Each lot in the plat of a residential development has adequate and safe access 
to/from a local street.  Yes. 

i. The plat is located in an area of the City that is appropriate for current 
development activity; it will not contribute to sprawl nor to the need for 
inefficient extensions and expansions of public facilities, utilities and services.  
The Comprehensive P lan identifies this as an area for single family 
residential development.   

j. If located in an area proposed for annexation to the City, the area has been 
annexed prior to, or will be annexed simultaneously with plat approval.  N/A. 



k. The applicant agrees to dedicate land, right-of-way and easements, as may be 
determined to be needed, to effectuate the purposes of these regulations and 
the standards and requirements incorporated herein.  P lat is in conformance 
w ith Engineer’s recommendations, including dedications as contained 
in the plat. 

l. All applicable submission requirements have been satisfied in a timely manner.  
Yes. 

m. The applicant agrees, in the form of a development agreement, to provide 
additional improvements, which may include any necessary upgrades to adjacent 
or nearby existing roads and other facilities to current standards and shall 
include dedication of adequate rights-of-way to meet the needs of the City's 
transportation plans.  Off -site or additional facilit ies are required prior to 
rezoning approval.   

STAFF RECOMMENDATION: 
 
 Staff recommends APPROVAL of the proposed Preliminary Plat conditioned 
upon execution of a development agreement that meets all of the city standards 
and as approved by the Board of Aldermen.   
 
Respectfully Submitted, 
 
 
___________________________ 
Director of Development 



OFFICIAL NOTICE 
 

To whom it may concern and to all parties interested, notice is hereby given that 
at 7:00 PM on June 8, 2021, the Smithville Planning Commission will conduct 
virtual public hearings (online via Zoom) and consider the following: 
 
  An Application for rezoning 80 acres from R-1P and R-2P to a new 
district R-1D and considering a Preliminary Plat for a Subdivision to be named 
Eagle Heights as depicted below, creating 261 Single Family residential  lots on 
80+/- acres on property legally described as follows: 
 

 
 
Tract I: 
All That Part Of The Southwest Quarter Of The Southwest Quarter Of Section 1, 
Township 53 North, Range 33 West, In Smithville, Clay County, Missouri Being 
Described As Follows;  Beginning At The Southwest Corner Of The Southwest 
Quarter Of Said Section 1;  Thence N00°07'05"E, Along The West Line Of Said 
Southwest Quarter, A Distance Of 1331.13 Feet To The Northwest Corner Of The 
Southwest Quarter Of Said Southwest Quarter;  Thence N89°46'52"E, Along The 
North Line Of Said Quarter Quarter Section, A Distance Of 1279.00 Feet To A 
Point On The West Right Of Way Line Of "F" Highway;  Thence S00°11'44"W, 
Along Said Right Of Way Line, A Distance Of 1330.25 Feet To A Point On The 



South Line Of The Southwest Quarter Of Said Section 1;  Thence S89°44'28"W, 
Along Said South Line, A Distance Of 1277.21 Feet To The Point Of Beginning.   
Tract II: 
All That Part Of The South Half Of The Southeast Quarter Of Section 2, Towhship 
53 North, Range 33 West, In Smithville, Clay County, Missouri Being Described 
As Follows:  Beginning At The Southeast Corner Of Said Southeast Quarter;  
Thence S89°50'56"W, Along The South Line Of Said Southeast Quarter, A 
Distance Of 1341.20 Feet;  Thence N00°07'05"E, A Distance Of 1329.55 Feet To 
A Point On The North Line Of The South Half Of Said Southeast Quarter;  Thence 
N89°46'52"E, Along Said Line, A Distance Of 1341.21 Feet To The Northeast 
Corner Of Said South Half;  Thence S00°07'05"W, Along The East Line Of Said 
Southeast Quarter, A Distance Of 1331.13 Feet To The Point Of Beginning. 
 
As provided in the Zoning Ordinances of Smithville, Mo. the above items will be 
discussed and considered by the Planning Commission, and all persons interested 
in said matter will be heard at this time concerning their views and wishes; and 
any protest of the provisions of the proposed changes to the Zoning Ordinance 
will be considered by the Commission as provided by law. 
 
NOTICE:   *Due to construction at City Hall and the Health Officer’s orders for 
safety, public meetings and public comment during public meetings will require 
modification.  The City of Smithville is committed to transparent public meetings 
and will continue this commitment.  Anyone who wishes to view the meeting 
may do so in real time as it will be streamed live on the city’s Youtube page.   
 
For Public Comment, please email your request to the City Clerk at 
ldrummond@smithvillemo.org prior to the meeting to be invited via Zoom to 
access the meeting via internet or phone. 
 
Publish in the May 20th Edition of the CT 





 

 
  

Date: May 28, 2021 

Prepared By: Jack Hendrix 

Subject: Site Plan Review – CPC of Missouri Medical Marijuana 
Facility  

 

The applicant has submitted a proposal to construct an 82,775 ft2 building 
for cultivation and manufacture of medical marijuana.  The proposed 
location is on land in the industrial park under construction off Park Dr.  
This structure has been in design for some time, and city staff and 
engineers have been working with those designers to address the 
stormwater runoff, water, and sanitary sewer requirements for the 
building.  Those items are required to be approved but are not part of the 
site plan review process.   

During this review, staff identified some requirements that are substantially 
different that what was required in the CDL school review a few months 
ago.  We have notified the CDL applicant that some standards they were 
required to meet applied only to B-3 properties and NOT I-1.  Those 
different requirements are identified here. 

First, the proposed building is substantially larger than any other building 
we have reviewed (25% larger than Price Chopper’s building) and certain 
design looks called for in the code don’t seem to work well with the size of 
the structure.  To stay within the intent of the requirements of the site plan 
ordinance, staff recommends a few slight variances from the standards.  
These variances will also be identified herein.   

First, the building is exceedingly long, so much that the north and south 
elevations must be split into three separate drawings.  The east and west 
elevations are contained in one drawing each.  The first variance staff 
recommends adjusting is the roof pitch.  Our standards require that the 
roof be either 3/12 or higher pitched or can be flat roofed.  Given the sheer 
size of the building, a flat roof is not feasible with the proposed 

STAFF REPORT 



construction method of a steel structured building.  That leaves the 
standard, sloped roof.  The proposed building as depicted would need to 
be over 11’ taller at the peak to meet the 3/12 pitch requirements.  As 
stated above, the sheer size of the building makes that height 
unnecessarily expensive to construct when wind loads are taken into 
account. 

The second variance proposal would be the type and amount of buffering 
around the number of HVAC units required as a part of the facility.  Our 
standards require exterior ground-mounted equipment shall be screened 
from view with a solid wall.  That section is sufficiently ambiguous that 
staff recommends that this buffering be present along the side of the units 
that is visible from the street, and not the full length of the building as 
well. 

The remainder of the submittal complies with the color requirements, 
material requirements, and in particular the landscaping requirements.  
Because there are stringent security fencing requirements from the State of 
Missouri, it will be difficult, if not impossible to lessen the impact of the 
security. The final matter relates to the different standards from B-3 and I-
1 mentioned above.  In particular, the type of metal sidings that can be 
approved are different.  In both districts, certain materials are prohibited.   

In the B-3 district, the prohibition is of “Metal, except when used only in an 
incidental role such as trim, architectural features, standing seam metal 
roofing or other architectural metal siding or roofing as specifically 
approved” 

In the I-1 district, the prohibition is “Metal panel siding with a thickness of 
less than twenty-four (24) gauge and with a corrugation of less than one 
and one-fourth (1 1/4) inch depth” 

This effectively means the ribbed metal panels that are discouraged in the 
B-3 district are approved in the I-1 district if they meet the gauge and 
depth requirements as stated.  The applicant has submitted plans to meet 
the I-1 district standards.  As a result, staff recommends the Commission 
approve the design as shown. 



1ST FLOOR
100' - 0"

T.O. LOW ROOF

EVE STRUT
114' - 6"

T.O. HIGH ROOF

EVE STRUT
118' - 2"

654321

T.O. HIGH ROOF
136' - 9"

T.O. LOW ROOF
130' - 7"

1
0
1
A

1
0
6

C
1
3
6
B

C
1
0
8

02 02

7 8

7
' 
- 

0
"

7
' 
- 

0
"

7
' 
- 

0
"

7
' 
- 

0
"

3
' 
- 

4
"

4
' 
- 

0
"

4
' 
- 

0
"

3
' 
- 

4
"

3
' 
- 

4
"

4
' 
- 

0
"

D3

M3

D4 D1 D2 D1 D2 D3 D4M1 M2 M2M2M2

M3

B3

C2

1ST FLOOR
100' - 0"

T.O. LOW ROOF

EVE STRUT
114' - 6"

T.O. HIGH ROOF

EVE STRUT
118' - 2"

T.O. HIGH ROOF
136' - 9"

T.O. LOW ROOF
130' - 7"

C136A C134 C132A

C
1
0
6
A

8 9 10 11 12 13 14 15

9
' 
- 

0
"

9
' 
- 

0
"

7
' 
- 

0
"

7
' 
- 

0
"

123

9
' 
- 

0
"

D4 D3D4 D3 D4 D3 D2 D1 M2 M2 M2 M2

M3

M1 D2 D1

1ST FLOOR
100' - 0"

T.O. LOW ROOF

EVE STRUT
114' - 6"

T.O. HIGH ROOF

EVE STRUT
118' - 2"

T.O. HIGH ROOF
136' - 9"

T.O. LOW ROOF
130' - 7"

C
1
0
4
A

15 16 17 18 19 20 21 22

7
' 
- 

0
"

M2 M2

M3

M1 D1 D2M2 M2

1ST FLOOR
100' - 0"

T.O. LOW ROOF

EVE STRUT
114' - 6"

T.O. HIGH ROOF

EVE STRUT
118' - 2"

T.O. HIGH ROOF
136' - 9"

T.O. LOW ROOF
130' - 7"

P
1
0

2
A 02 02 02 02 02 02 01

B ACGHI DEF

7
' 
- 

0
"

3
' 
- 

4
"

4
' 
- 

0
"

3
' 
- 

4
"

4
' 
- 

0
"

4
' 
- 

0
"

3
' 
- 

4
"

4
' 
- 

0
"

3
' 
- 

4
"

4
' 
- 

0
"

3
' 
- 

4
"

4
' 
- 

8
"

3
' 
- 

4
"

4
' 
- 

0
"

3
' 
- 

4
"

B1

M1

M2

M2

M2

M2

M2

M2

D1M2 M2

C2

C2

B3

B1

B1B3B1B3B1B3B1B3B1B3B1B3B1

B4

M1 FIELD COLOR NUCOR PUDF SLATE GRAY

M2 ACCENT COLOR NUCOR PUDF - REGAL WHITE

M3 ROOF COLOR  NUCOR PUDF REFLECTIVE WHITE

M4 PRECAST STONE CAP MIDWEST BLOCK AND BRICK

B1 FIELD COLOR MIDWEST BLOCK AND BRICK PEWTER 

4" SPLIT FACE

B2 FIELD COLOR MIDWEST BLOCK AND BRICK PEWTER 

8" SPLIT FACE

B3 ACCENT COLOR MIDWEST BLOCK AND BRICK SLATE 

4" SPLIT FACE

B4 ACCENT COLOR MIDWEST BLOCK AND BRICK SLATE 

8" SMOOTH FACE

D1 DOOR COLOR TO MATCH SLATE GRAY - M1

D2 DOOR TRIM TO MATCH SLATE GRAY - M1

D3 DOOR COLOR

D4 DOOR TRIM

C1 CANOPY - MAPES CANOPY - TBD

C2 CANOPY - MAPES CANOPY - BONE WHITE

MATERIAL FINISH LEGEND:

SHEET NAME:

VERVE PROJECT NO.:

THIS SHEET IS PART OF A COMPLETE SET. REFER 
TO GENERAL NOTES FOR COMPLETE LIST OF 
DOCUMENTS. SHEET SIZE 30 X 42

ISSUE DATE:

© 2021 VERVE

SHEET NO.

GEOFFREY LEWIS CROWLEY
NUMBER A - 2007035149

STATE OF MISSOURI CERTIFICATE 
OF AUTHORITY # A-2013038641

I hereby specify, pursuant to RSMo 327.411,
this drawing sheet is authenticated by my seal.

1558 S. BROADWAY
ST. LOUIS, MISSOURI 63104

314-822-4007
www.VERVEDS.com

N
O

T 
FO

R 

C
O

N
ST

RUC
TIO

N

C
:\

U
se

rs
\

jr
o

se
\

D
o

c
u

m
e

n
ts

\
2
1
0
1
6
 -

 C
P

C
 o

f 
M

O
 S

m
it
h

v
ill

e
 C

u
lt
iv

a
ti
o

n
 -

 C
e

n
tr

a
l_

jr
o

se
M

7
4
X

5
.r

v
t

5
/2

6
/2

0
2
1
 5

:2
9
:5

8
 P

M

C
P

C
 O

F
 M

O
 S

M
IT

H
V

IL
LE

 C
U

LT
IV

A
TI

O
N

1
4

8
1

6
 U

.S
. 
H

IG
H

W
A

Y
 1

6
9

S
M

IT
H

V
IL

LE
, 
M

O
 6

4
0
8

9

EXTERIOR ELEVATIONS

21016

05/24/2021

A200

DESIGN DEVELOPMENT

1/8" = 1'-0"A200

1 NORTH ELEVATION - 01

1/8" = 1'-0"A200

2 NORTH ELEVATION - 02

1/8" = 1'-0"A200

3 NORTH ELEVATION - 03

1/8" = 1'-0"A200

4 EAST ELEVATION - 01

MARK DATE DESCRIPTION



1ST FLOOR
100' - 0"

T.O. LOW ROOF

EVE STRUT
114' - 6"

T.O. HIGH ROOF

EVE STRUT
118' - 2"

T.O. HIGH ROOF
136' - 9"

T.O. LOW ROOF
130' - 7"

3

A302

BA C G H ID E F

M1 M1

M2

M2M2

1ST FLOOR
100' - 0"

T.O. LOW ROOF

EVE STRUT
114' - 6"

T.O. HIGH ROOF

EVE STRUT
118' - 2"

6 5 4 3 2 1

T.O. HIGH ROOF
136' - 9"

T.O. LOW ROOF
130' - 7"

1

A301

C
1

0
1

78

7
' 
- 

0
"

M3 M3

M2 M3 M2 M2M3 D2 D1 C2B4B2

1ST FLOOR
100' - 0"

T.O. LOW ROOF

EVE STRUT
114' - 6"

T.O. HIGH ROOF

EVE STRUT
118' - 2"

T.O. HIGH ROOF
136' - 9"

T.O. LOW ROOF
130' - 7"

2

A301

C
1

0
6

B

89101112131415

7
' 
- 

0
"

7
' 
- 

0
"

C
2

1
1

M2D2 D1 D2 D1 M2 M2 M2

M3 M3

1ST FLOOR
100' - 0"

T.O. LOW ROOF

EVE STRUT
114' - 6"

T.O. HIGH ROOF

EVE STRUT
118' - 2"

T.O. HIGH ROOF
136' - 9"

T.O. LOW ROOF
130' - 7"

C
1

0
4

B

1516171819202122

C
1

5
0

C
2

0
8

C
2

0
9

C
2

1
0

7
' 
- 

0
"

7
' 
- 

0
"

7
' 
- 

0
"

7
' 
- 

0
"

7
' 
- 

0
"

D2 D1 D2 D1 D2 D1 D2 D1M2M2

M1 FIELD COLOR NUCOR PUDF SLATE GRAY

M2 ACCENT COLOR NUCOR PUDF - REGAL WHITE

M3 ROOF COLOR  NUCOR PUDF REFLECTIVE WHITE

M4 PRECAST STONE CAP MIDWEST BLOCK AND BRICK

B1 FIELD COLOR MIDWEST BLOCK AND BRICK PEWTER 

4" SPLIT FACE

B2 FIELD COLOR MIDWEST BLOCK AND BRICK PEWTER 

8" SPLIT FACE

B3 ACCENT COLOR MIDWEST BLOCK AND BRICK SLATE 

4" SPLIT FACE

B4 ACCENT COLOR MIDWEST BLOCK AND BRICK SLATE 

8" SMOOTH FACE

D1 DOOR COLOR TO MATCH SLATE GRAY - M1

D2 DOOR TRIM TO MATCH SLATE GRAY - M1

D3 DOOR COLOR

D4 DOOR TRIM

C1 CANOPY - MAPES CANOPY - TBD

C2 CANOPY - MAPES CANOPY - BONE WHITE

MATERIAL FINISH LEGEND:

SHEET NAME:

VERVE PROJECT NO.:

THIS SHEET IS PART OF A COMPLETE SET. REFER 
TO GENERAL NOTES FOR COMPLETE LIST OF 
DOCUMENTS. SHEET SIZE 30 X 42

ISSUE DATE:

© 2021 VERVE

SHEET NO.

GEOFFREY LEWIS CROWLEY
NUMBER A - 2007035149

STATE OF MISSOURI CERTIFICATE 
OF AUTHORITY # A-2013038641

I hereby specify, pursuant to RSMo 327.411,
this drawing sheet is authenticated by my seal.

1558 S. BROADWAY
ST. LOUIS, MISSOURI 63104

314-822-4007
www.VERVEDS.com

N
O

T 
FO

R 

C
O

N
ST

RUC
TIO

N

C
:\

U
se

rs
\

jr
o

se
\

D
o

c
u

m
e

n
ts

\
2
1
0
1
6
 -

 C
P

C
 o

f 
M

O
 S

m
it
h

v
ill

e
 C

u
lt
iv

a
ti
o

n
 -

 C
e

n
tr

a
l_

jr
o

se
M

7
4
X

5
.r

v
t

5
/2

6
/2

0
2
1
 5

:3
0
:0

7
 P

M

C
P

C
 O

F
 M

O
 S

M
IT

H
V

IL
LE

 C
U

LT
IV

A
TI

O
N

1
4

8
1

6
 U

.S
. 
H

IG
H

W
A

Y
 1

6
9

S
M

IT
H

V
IL

LE
, 
M

O
 6

4
0
8

9

EXTERIOR ELEVATIONS

21016

05/24/2021

A201

DESIGN DEVELOPMENT

1/8" = 1'-0"A201

8 WEST ELEVATION - 01

1/8" = 1'-0"A201

5 SOUTH ELEVATION - 01

1/8" = 1'-0"A201

6 SOUTH ELEVATION - 02

1/8" = 1'-0"A201

7 SOUTH ELEVATION - 03

MARK DATE DESCRIPTION



CPC OF MO SMITHVILLE CULTIVATION
PARK DRIVE

SMITHVILLE, MISSOURI, 64089
FIRST PARK SECOND PLAT, LOT 17

IN SMITHVILLE, CLAY COUNTY, MISSOURI

SITE DATA

PROPERTY DESCRIPTION 

PROJECT TEAM & UTILITY CONTACT LIST

VICINITY MAP
SCALE: 1" = 500'

C
O

V
E

R
 S

H
E

E
T

C_TTL01_A2103223

C0.0

GENERAL NOTES

’

REFERENCES

EXISTING CONDITIONS

CONSTRUCTION

 

SHOP DRAWINGS

’

’

“
” 

R
E

V
IS

IO
N

S

N
O

.
R

E
V

.
D

A
TE

R
E

V
IS

IO
N

S
 D

E
S

C
R

IP
TI

O
N

project no.:

approved by:
checked by:
drawn by:

drawing no.:

QA/QC by:

date:

SHEET

w
w

w
.o

ls
so

n.
co

m
TE

L 
 5

15
.3

31
.6

51
7 

S
ui

te
 1

11
D

es
 M

oi
ne

s,
 IA

 5
03

09

17
17

 In
ge

rs
ol

l A
ve

C
P

C
 O

F 
M

O
 S

M
IT

H
V

IL
LE

 C
U

LT
IV

A
TI

O
N

C
O

N
S

TR
U

C
TI

O
N

 D
O

C
U

M
E

N
TS

S
M

IT
H

V
IL

LE
, M

O
20

21

CSM
CSM
TMA
TMA

A21-03223

04.27.2021

SHEET LIST TABLE



UNPLATTED
Bk. 2391
Pg. 533

UNPLATTED

LOT 2
Bk. 8294
Pg. 44

TRACT "A"
STORM WATER

DETENTION

LOT 16
Bk. 1

Pg. 120.1
IN

D
U

STR
IAL D

R
IVE

(60' R
.O

W
.)

PROPOSED SKYBRIDGE WAREHOUSE
F.F.E.= 948.00

AREA = 82,775 SF

R
E

V
IS

IO
N

S

N
O

.
R

E
V

.
D

A
TE

R
E

V
IS

IO
N

S
 D

E
S

C
R

IP
TI

O
N

project no.:

approved by:
checked by:
drawn by:

drawing no.:

QA/QC by:

date:

SHEET

w
w

w
.o

ls
so

n.
co

m
TE

L 
 5

15
.3

31
.6

51
7 

S
ui

te
 1

11
D

es
 M

oi
ne

s,
 IA

 5
03

09

17
17

 In
ge

rs
ol

l A
ve

C
P

C
 O

F 
M

O
 S

M
IT

H
V

IL
LE

 C
U

LT
IV

A
TI

O
N

C
O

N
S

TR
U

C
TI

O
N

 D
O

C
U

M
E

N
TS

S
M

IT
H

V
IL

LE
, M

O
20

21

CSM
CSM
TMA
TMA

A21-03223

04.27.2021

O
V

E
R

A
LL

 S
IT

E
 P

LA
N

C_SIT01_A2103223

C1.0

KEYNOTES:KEYNOTES:LEGEND

EASEMENT LEGEND



PROPOSED SKYBRIDGE WAREHOUSE
F.F.E.= 948.00

AREA = 82,775 SF

R
E

V
IS

IO
N

S

N
O

.
R

E
V

.
D

A
TE

R
E

V
IS

IO
N

S
 D

E
S

C
R

IP
TI

O
N

project no.:

approved by:
checked by:
drawn by:

drawing no.:

QA/QC by:

date:

SHEET

w
w

w
.o

ls
so

n.
co

m
TE

L 
 5

15
.3

31
.6

51
7 

S
ui

te
 1

11
D

es
 M

oi
ne

s,
 IA

 5
03

09

17
17

 In
ge

rs
ol

l A
ve

C
P

C
 O

F 
M

O
 S

M
IT

H
V

IL
LE

 C
U

LT
IV

A
TI

O
N

C
O

N
S

TR
U

C
TI

O
N

 D
O

C
U

M
E

N
TS

S
M

IT
H

V
IL

LE
, M

O
20

21

CSM
CSM
TMA
TMA

A21-03223

04.27.2021

S
IT

E
 P

LA
N

C_SIT01_A2103223

C1.1

KEYNOTES:SITE PLAN LEGEND KEYNOTES:

DETAIL A

SITE PLAN NOTES

LEGEND

EASEMENT LEGEND

DETAIL B

DETAIL B LEGEND



LOT 17
Bk. 1

Pg. 120.1

PROPOSED SKYBRIDGE WAREHOUSE
F.F.E.= 948.00

AREA = 82,775 SF

IN
D

U
STR

IAL D
R

IVE

(60' R
.O

W
.)

R
E

V
IS

IO
N

S

N
O

.
R

E
V

.
D

A
TE

R
E

V
IS

IO
N

S
 D

E
S

C
R

IP
TI

O
N

project no.:

approved by:
checked by:
drawn by:

drawing no.:

QA/QC by:

date:

SHEET

w
w

w
.o

ls
so

n.
co

m
TE

L 
 5

15
.3

31
.6

51
7 

S
ui

te
 1

11
D

es
 M

oi
ne

s,
 IA

 5
03

09

17
17

 In
ge

rs
ol

l A
ve

C
P

C
 O

F 
M

O
 S

M
IT

H
V

IL
LE

 C
U

LT
IV

A
TI

O
N

C
O

N
S

TR
U

C
TI

O
N

 D
O

C
U

M
E

N
TS

S
M

IT
H

V
IL

LE
, M

O
20

21

CSM
CSM
TMA
TMA

A21-03223

04.27.2021

O
V

E
R

A
LL

 G
R

A
D

IN
G

 P
LA

N

C_GRD01_A2103223

C2.0

LEGEND



LOT 17
Bk. 1

Pg. 120.1

PROPOSED SKYBRIDGE WAREHOUSE
F.F.E.= 948.00

AREA = 82,775 SF

IN
D

U
STR

IAL D
R

IVE

(60' R
.O

W
.)

R
E

V
IS

IO
N

S

N
O

.
R

E
V

.
D

A
TE

R
E

V
IS

IO
N

S
 D

E
S

C
R

IP
TI

O
N

project no.:

approved by:
checked by:
drawn by:

drawing no.:

QA/QC by:

date:

SHEET

w
w

w
.o

ls
so

n.
co

m
TE

L 
 5

15
.3

31
.6

51
7 

S
ui

te
 1

11
D

es
 M

oi
ne

s,
 IA

 5
03

09

17
17

 In
ge

rs
ol

l A
ve

C
P

C
 O

F 
M

O
 S

M
IT

H
V

IL
LE

 C
U

LT
IV

A
TI

O
N

C
O

N
S

TR
U

C
TI

O
N

 D
O

C
U

M
E

N
TS

S
M

IT
H

V
IL

LE
, M

O
20

21

CSM
CSM
TMA
TMA

A21-03223

04.27.2021

G
R

A
D

IN
G

 P
LA

N

C_GRD01_A2103223

C2.1

SPOT ELEVATION ABBREVIATIONS

LEGEND

GRADING PLAN NOTES

DETAIL A DETAIL B

L
R

R

L



R
E

V
IS

IO
N

S

N
O

.
R

E
V

.
D

A
TE

R
E

V
IS

IO
N

S
 D

E
S

C
R

IP
TI

O
N

project no.:

approved by:
checked by:
drawn by:

drawing no.:

QA/QC by:

date:

SHEET

w
w

w
.o

ls
so

n.
co

m
TE

L 
 5

15
.3

31
.6

51
7 

S
ui

te
 1

11
D

es
 M

oi
ne

s,
 IA

 5
03

09

17
17

 In
ge

rs
ol

l A
ve

C
P

C
 O

F 
M

O
 S

M
IT

H
V

IL
LE

 C
U

LT
IV

A
TI

O
N

C
O

N
S

TR
U

C
TI

O
N

 D
O

C
U

M
E

N
TS

S
M

IT
H

V
IL

LE
, M

O
20

21

CSM
CSM
TMA
TMA

A21-03223

04.27.2021

D
E

TE
N

TI
O

N
 B

A
S

IN
 P

LA
N

C_GRD01_A2103223

C2.2OUTLET STRUCTURE

LEGEND

STORM SEWER KEYNOTES



LOT 17
Bk. 1

Pg. 120.1

IN
D

U
STR

IAL D
R

IVE

(60' R
.O

W
.)

PROPOSED SKYBRIDGE WAREHOUSE
F.F.E.= 948.00

AREA = 82,775 SF

R
E

V
IS

IO
N

S

N
O

.
R

E
V

.
D

A
TE

R
E

V
IS

IO
N

S
 D

E
S

C
R

IP
TI

O
N

project no.:

approved by:
checked by:
drawn by:

drawing no.:

QA/QC by:

date:

SHEET

w
w

w
.o

ls
so

n.
co

m
TE

L 
 5

15
.3

31
.6

51
7 

S
ui

te
 1

11
D

es
 M

oi
ne

s,
 IA

 5
03

09

17
17

 In
ge

rs
ol

l A
ve

C
P

C
 O

F 
M

O
 S

M
IT

H
V

IL
LE

 C
U

LT
IV

A
TI

O
N

C
O

N
S

TR
U

C
TI

O
N

 D
O

C
U

M
E

N
TS

S
M

IT
H

V
IL

LE
, M

O
20

21

CSM
CSM
TMA
TMA

A21-03223

04.27.2021

U
TI

LI
TY

 P
LA

N

C_UTL01_A2103223

C3.0

STORM SEWER PLAN NOTES

” 

WATER PLAN NOTES

” 

SANITARY SEWER PLAN NOTES

 

’ ’ 

DRY UTILITY PLAN NOTES

SANITARY SEWER KEYNOTES

WATER KEYNOTES

ELECTRICAL KEYNOTES

STORM SEWER KEYNOTES

LEGEND



IN
D

U
STR

IAL D
R

IVE

(60' R
.O

W
.)

PROPOSED SKYBRIDGE WAREHOUSE
F.F.E.= 948.00

AREA = 82,775 SF

R
E

V
IS

IO
N

S

N
O

.
R

E
V

.
D

A
TE

R
E

V
IS

IO
N

S
 D

E
S

C
R

IP
TI

O
N

project no.:

approved by:
checked by:
drawn by:

drawing no.:

QA/QC by:

date:

SHEET

w
w

w
.o

ls
so

n.
co

m
TE

L 
 5

15
.3

31
.6

51
7 

S
ui

te
 1

11
D

es
 M

oi
ne

s,
 IA

 5
03

09

17
17

 In
ge

rs
ol

l A
ve

C
P

C
 O

F 
M

O
 S

M
IT

H
V

IL
LE

 C
U

LT
IV

A
TI

O
N

C
O

N
S

TR
U

C
TI

O
N

 D
O

C
U

M
E

N
TS

S
M

IT
H

V
IL

LE
, M

O
20

21

CSM
CSM
TMA
TMA

A21-03223

04.27.2021

E
R

O
S

IO
N

 C
O

N
TR

O
L 

P
LA

N

C_ERC01_A2103223

C4.0

LEGEND



R
E

V
IS

IO
N

S

N
O

.
R

E
V

.
D

A
TE

R
E

V
IS

IO
N

S
 D

E
S

C
R

IP
TI

O
N

project no.:

approved by:
checked by:
drawn by:

drawing no.:

QA/QC by:

date:

SHEET

w
w

w
.o

ls
so

n.
co

m
TE

L 
 5

15
.3

31
.6

51
7 

S
ui

te
 1

11
D

es
 M

oi
ne

s,
 IA

 5
03

09

17
17

 In
ge

rs
ol

l A
ve

C
P

C
 O

F 
M

O
 S

M
IT

H
V

IL
LE

 C
U

LT
IV

A
TI

O
N

C
O

N
S

TR
U

C
TI

O
N

 D
O

C
U

M
E

N
TS

S
M

IT
H

V
IL

LE
, M

O
20

21

CSM
CSM
TMA
TMA

A21-03223

04.27.2021

C
O

N
S

TR
U

C
TI

O
N

 D
E

TA
IL

S

C_DTL01_A2103223

C5.0

TYPICAL TRENCH SECTION 

UNDERGROUND PIPE INSTALLATION
FOR WATER PIPING

CONNECTION DETAIL 1

SECTION VIEW

PRE-CAST MANHOLE

ACCESSIBLE PARKING SYMBOL

NOTE

ACCESSIBLE PARKING SPACE LAYOUT DETAIL

NOTES

ACCESSIBLE PARKING
SPACE SIGNAGE

STANDARD CONCRETE WALK DETAIL
SIDEWALK TO BUILDING SLAB
CONNECTION DETAIL

ELEVATION A-A
WHEEL STOP DETAIL

NOTE:
 

STRAIGHT BACK CURB & GUTTER

PCC PAVEMENT WITH AGGREGATE SECTION

ROLL BACK CURB & GUTTER

BOLLARD DETAIL

CANTILEVER GATE DETAIL
NOT TO SCALE



R
E

V
IS

IO
N

S

N
O

.
R

E
V

.
D

A
TE

R
E

V
IS

IO
N

S
 D

E
S

C
R

IP
TI

O
N

project no.:

approved by:
checked by:
drawn by:

drawing no.:

QA/QC by:

date:

SHEET

w
w

w
.o

ls
so

n.
co

m
TE

L 
 5

15
.3

31
.6

51
7 

S
ui

te
 1

11
D

es
 M

oi
ne

s,
 IA

 5
03

09

17
17

 In
ge

rs
ol

l A
ve

C
P

C
 O

F 
M

O
 S

M
IT

H
V

IL
LE

 C
U

LT
IV

A
TI

O
N

C
O

N
S

TR
U

C
TI

O
N

 D
O

C
U

M
E

N
TS

S
M

IT
H

V
IL

LE
, M

O
20

21

CSM
CSM
TMA
TMA

A21-03223

04.27.2021

C
O

N
S

TR
U

C
TI

O
N

 D
E

TA
IL

S

C_DTL01_A2103223

C5.1

KEYNOTES
FOOTING DESIGN BY CONTRACTOR AS PERFORMANCE SPECIFIED

SECURITY FENCE DETAIL



LOT 17
Bk. 1

Pg. 120.1

PROPOSED SKYBRIDGE WAREHOUSE
F.F.E.= 948.00

AREA = 82,775 SF

IN
D

U
STR

IAL D
R

IVE

(60' R
.O

W
.)

IN
D

U
STR

IAL D
R

IVE

(60' R
.O

W
.)

PLANT SCHEDULE

R
E

V
IS

IO
N

S

N
O

.
R

E
V

.
D

A
TE

R
E

V
IS

IO
N

S
 D

E
S

C
R

IP
TI

O
N

project no.:

approved by:
checked by:
drawn by:

drawing no.:

QA/QC by:

date:

SHEET

w
w

w
.o

ls
so

n.
co

m
TE

L 
 5

15
.3

31
.6

51
7 

S
ui

te
 1

11
D

es
 M

oi
ne

s,
 IA

 5
03

09

17
17

 In
ge

rs
ol

l A
ve

C
P

C
 O

F 
M

O
 S

M
IT

H
V

IL
LE

 C
U

LT
IV

A
TI

O
N

C
O

N
S

TR
U

C
TI

O
N

 D
O

C
U

M
E

N
TS

S
M

IT
H

V
IL

LE
, M

O
20

21

CSM
CSM
TMA
TMA

A21-03223

04.27.2021

LA
N

D
S

C
A

P
E

 P
LA

N

L_SIT01_A2103223

L1.0

LANDSCAPE DATA TABLE



 

 
  

Date: May 28, 2021 

Prepared By: Jack Hendrix 

Subject: Site Plan Review – KCI RV Site Plan Amendment 
 

The applicant has submitted a proposed change to the previously approved 
site plan for KCI RV Storage.  This proposal would eliminate one building 
from the previously approved site plan, but add some different buffering on 
the east side of the property as seen from 169.  The proposal is to install 
25 RV Camping Pads just east of the current building 3 on the south half of 
the project area.  The Pad area would be buffered from view of 169 with 
Green Giant Evergreen Arborvitae trees planted on 10’ centers (growth 
anticipated of 8’-12’ diameter when fully grown).  This would eliminate any  
site obscuring fencing along the east side.  The green giant is said to be 
one of the fastest growing landscaping trees available, so full buffer would 
be present in just a few years.   

The proposal also includes 23 additional pad sites available for future 
construction on the north side of the entrance drive to the north end of the 
development.  In addition to the removal of one RV storage building on the 
north half, a proposed 3,000 square foot office building with showers, 
restrooms and laundry facilities for customer use, as well as 24 hour office 
staff for services.  The building must match the other buildings in design 
and coloration of the previously approved site plan.   

The final proposal is not subject to site plan review but is presented for 
location and identification purposes.  That is an outdoor storage area that 
will be west of the current westernmost building.  As with all outdoor 
storage areas, it must have storage screening that is “a solid or semisolid 
fence or wall or trees or shrubs at least six (6) feet but not more than eight 
(8) feet high (maximum height excluded for trees and shrubs) and having 
a density of not less than eighty percent (80%) per square foot.” 

STAFF REPORT 



All aspects of the proposal comply with the site plan standards.  Nothing in 
this proposal would change the current obligation of the applicant to 
construct and extend Commercial Dr. to the west property line prior to 
issuance of a building permit for the 4th storage building on the project site. 

Staff recommends approval of the site plan as stated above. 





 

In March of 2020, the Herzog Foundation came forward with a proposed 
new subdivision and rezoning request on the north 8 acres of the Catholic 
Church parcel.  The purpose of that proposal was to allow the design and 
construction of an approximately 17,000 square foot national headquarters 
and office complex.  The original concept was to have an entrance 
approximately 275’ east of 169.  That proposal triggered certain off-site 
street improvements along 188th St. from 169 to Main St., subject to the 
actual site plan submitted.   That zoning and plat were approved in the 
City’s first Zoom Planning Commission meeting.   

In September, the foundation came forward with the actual site plan 
documents for the foundation.  In those documents, in addition to the 
foundation headquarters, the foundation indicated that they had future 
plans to put some form of cabins on the property for use of out-of-town 
guests.  At that time, there was not enough information for city staff to 
evaluate the proposal, so it was not included in the Site Plan approval from 
September of 2020. 

Recently, the foundation submitted plans for the development of the 
cabins.  The review of the plans as submitted meet the design and layout 
standards of the Site plan ordinances.  The most significant point of 
discussion has been the development of the site significantly to the east of 
the headquarters building in what was originally a large, wooded area.  
Now that the site plan is expanding, and more particularly nearly to the 
Main St. intersection, staff is requiring the remainder of the adjacent street 
improvements. 

Staff recommends approval of the Site Plan, conditioned upon the 
infrastructure improvements of Main St., as follows: 

 

 
  

Date: June 2, 2021 

Prepared By: Jack Hendrix 

Subject: Herzog Foundation Cabins 

STAFF REPORT 



Construct a new asphalt street, including appropriate sub-grade 
improvements and storm sewer as needed along the entire property line.  
The new asphalt street should be adjusted to the center of the existing 
right of way as is practicable.  The new asphalt street must include both 
curb/gutters and a 6’ sidewalk to match the 188th St. Improvements 
already underway.  The minimum standard is 8” of asphalt pavement on 
treated/ stabilized subgrade of 24’ width (plus the additional width of the 
curbs) and any taper into the existing roadway. Public Improvement plans 
must meet current City standards and approved by the Public Works 
Director.  

 



Checked By

Drawn By

Project Number: Copyright 2020c

ISSUED FOR:

A

1 32 242322212019181716151413121110987654

2 31 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12 13 14 15 16 17 18 19 20 21 22 23 24

B

C

D

E

F

G

H

J

K

L

M

N

P

Q

R

Missouri Certificate of Authority: #ARC000344

G
a
s
ti
n
g
e
rW

a
lk
e
r

A
rc

h
it
e
c
ts

  
  
  
|
  
  
  
In

te
ri

o
r 

 D
e

si
g

n
e

rs
  
  
  
 |

  
  
  
C

o
n

st
ru

c
ti
o

n
  
M

a
n

a
g

e
rs

8
1
7
 W

ya
n

d
o

tt
e
  
K

a
n

sa
s 

C
ity

 M
is

so
u

ri
 6

4
1
0
5
  
8
1
6
.4

2
1
.8

2
0
0
  
g

a
st

in
g

e
rw

a
lk

e
r.

c
o

m
 

2
0
2
0

.2
6

7
.H

e
rz

o
g
 C

a
b
in

s
 C

E
N

T
R

A
L

_
d
e
ta

c
h

e
d
.r

v
t

00.00

Cover Sheet and General
Information

Author

Checker

2020.267b

Hoerr Schaudt Landscape Architects

312.492.6501

CIVIL

913.451.1818

STRUCTURAL

PMA Engineering

MECHANICAL, ELECTRICAL, PLUMBING

PKMR Engineers

913.492.2400

LIGHTING DESIGNER

LightWorks, Inc.

816.640.9948

Planning Commission 05.28.2021

14450 N US Highway 169, Suite L

Smithville, MO 64089

Stanley Herzog
Foundation:

Cabins

LANDSCAPE ARCHITECT

SK Design Group, Inc.

913.831.1262

105 NW 188th Street
Smithville, Missouri 64089

Stanley Herzog Foundation: Cabins

ISSUED FOR:
Planning Commission

Owner
Stanley Herzog Foundation
14450 N US Highway 169, Ste L
Smithville, MO 64089

Architect
GastingerWalker&
817 Wyandotte Street  
Kansas City, MO  64115
Contact: Anthony Luca
aluca@gastingerwalker.com
816.679.9551

Structural Engineer
PMA Engineereing
6717 Shawnee Mission Pkwy #100
Overland Park, KS 66202
Contact:Frank Smith
fsmith@pmaengineering.com
913.563.5745 

Civil Engineer
SK Design Group, Inc.
4600 College Blvd. Suite 100
Overland Park, KS 66211
Contact: Sassan Mahobian
sassan@skdg.com
913.238.3178

Landscape Architect
Hoerr Schaudt Landscape Architects
2100 Central Street, Suite 01C  
Kansas City, MO  64108
Contact: Aaron Ross
aross@hoerrschaudt.com
312.492.6501

MEP Engineer
PKMR Engineers
13300 W 96th Street
Lenexa, KS 66215
Contact: Pete Christiansen
pete.christiansen@pkmreng.com
913.492.2400 x159

Lighting
LightWorks,Inc.
361B Main 
Weston, MO 64098
Contact: Katie Green
katie@lightworkskc.com
816.640.9948 x3

Contractor
Crossland Construction, Inc.
3252 Roanoke Rd 
Kansas City, MO  64111
Contact: Matt Crossland
matt.crossland@crossland.com
816.960.4553

Entry Loop Trail

Phase 1: Offices
Submitted to Planning Commission 09.08.2020

Phase 2: Cabins
Submitted to Planning Commission 06.08.2021

P1



X3

945
945

945

945

940
940

93
5

935

935

93
5

93
5

935

935

930

930

935

930

X1

X2

RLR

940

F.F. ELEV.
938.00

F.F. ELEV.
938.00

F.F. ELEV.
940.20

F.F. ELEV.
937.50

935

935

935
940

940

CC1

CC2

EE1

DD2

DD1

EX1

EE2

FM

FM

FM

FM

FM

FM

Y1

FM

FM

LEVEL 1
F.F. ELEV. = 966.00

LEVEL 0
F.F. ELEV. = 952.00

H
IG

H
W

A
Y 

16
9

N
O

R
TH

 M
A

IN
 S

TR
E

E
T

NE 188TH STREET

Checked By

Drawn By

Project Number: Copyright 2020c

ISSUED FOR:

A
1 32 242322212019181716151413121110987654

2 31 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12 13 14 15 16 17 18 19 20 21 22 23 24

B

C

D

E

F

G

H

J

K

L

M

N

P

Q

R

G
as

tin
ge

rW
al

ke
r

A
rc

hi
te

ct
s 

   
  |

   
   

In
te

rio
r 

 D
es

ig
ne

rs
   

   
 |

   
   

C
on

st
ru

ct
io

n 
 M

an
ag

er
s

81
7 

W
ya

nd
ot

te
  K

an
sa

s 
C

ity
 M

is
so

ur
i 6

41
05

  8
16

.4
21

.8
20

0 
 g

as
tin

ge
rw

al
ke

r.c
om

Checked By

Drawn By

Project Number: Copyright 2020c

ISSUED FOR:

A
1 32 242322212019181716151413121110987654

2 31 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12 13 14 15 16 17 18 19 20 21 22 23 24

B

C

D

E

F

G

H

J

K

L

M

N

P

Q

R

Missouri Certificate of Authority: # 001274

G
as

tin
ge

rW
al

ke
r

A
rc

hi
te

ct
s 

   
  |

   
   

In
te

rio
r 

 D
es

ig
ne

rs
   

   
 |

   
   

C
on

st
ru

ct
io

n 
 M

an
ag

er
s

81
7 

W
ya

nd
ot

te
  K

an
sa

s 
C

ity
 M

is
so

ur
i 6

41
05

  8
16

.4
21

.8
20

0 
 g

as
tin

ge
rw

al
ke

r.c
om

C
:\U

se
rs

\a
lu

ca
\D

oc
um

en
ts

\2
02

0.
26

7.
H

er
zo

g 
C

ab
in

s_
al

uc
aR

M
VN

V.
rv

t

Author
Checker

Project
Number

Hoerr Schaudt Landscape Architects
312.492.6501

CIVIL

913.451.1818

STRUCTURAL
PMA Engineering

MECHANICAL, ELECTRICAL, PLUMBING
PKMR Engineers

913.492.2400

LIGHTING DESIGNER
LightWorks, Inc.

816.640.9948

Permit and Bid 04.14.2021

Herzog Foundation

14450 N US Highway 169, Suite L
Smithville, MO 64089

Stanley Herzog
Foundation:

Cabins

LANDSCAPE ARCHITECT

SK Design Group, Inc.

913.831.1262

105 NW 188th Street
Smithville, Missouri 64089

Overall Site Plan

10.10P2



X3

1

2

3

4

A

B

C

1

2

3

4

A

B

C

1

2

3

4

A

B

C

1

2

3

4

A

B

C

X1

X2

RLR

F.F. ELEV.
938.00

F.F. ELEV.
938.00

F.F. ELEV.
940.20

F.F. ELEV.
937.50

CC1

CC2

EE1

DD2

DD1

EX1

EE2

FM

FM

FM

FM

FM

FM

Y1

FM

FM

PROPERTY LINE

N
O

R
TH

 M
A

IN
 S

TR
E

E
T

NE 188TH STREET

EXISTING UTILITY
EASEMENT

NEW CONCRETE WALK
RE: LANDSCAPE FOR
JOINTS AND TEXTURE

WM

TRAIL
RE: LANDSCAPE

CURB HEIGHT
TRANSITION 6" TO 0"

FLUSH
CURB

BRIDGE
RE: LANDSCAPE &
STRUCTURAL

R25
.00

' R25.00'

28.00'
B.B.

9.00'
TYP.

9.50'
B.C.

R5
.0

0'

R5.00'

R2.00'

R
6.

00
'

19.00'
B.C.

25.00'

19.00'
B.C.
TYP.

9.00' 9.00'

5.00'
WALK

R3.00'

R
15

.5
0'

5.00'
WALK

25.00'
B.B.

VAN ACCESSIBLE SIGN
RE: 8/10.61

CONCRETE
DRIVEWAY

N=1189652.37
E=2766276.30

N=1189589.15
E=2766276.62

N=1189577.15
E=2766276.69

N=1189577.76
E=2766394.68

N=1189591.76
E=2766394.62

N=1189596.80
E=2766402.59

N=1189621.80
E=2766402.46

N=1189621.74
E=2766390.46

N=1189640.71
E=2766385.36

N=1189640.33
E=2766312.36

N=1189623.33
E=2766312.45

N=1189621.32
E=2766310.46

N=1189652.01
E=2766304.30

N=1189677.14
E=2766329.33

N=1189677.24
E=2766251.33

N=1189581.13
E=2766271.66

N=1189584.04
E=2766253.97

NEW ACCESSIBLE RAMP
RE: 7/10.61

CONCRETE SIDEWALK
RE: 3/10.61

NEW TYPE CG-1 CURB & GUTTER
RE: 5a/10.61

NEW TYPE CG-1 CURB & GUTTER (DRY)
RE: 5b/10.61

NEW FLUSH CURB
RE: 5c/10.61

CURB HEIGHT TRANSITION 6" HIGH TO 0" HIGH
RE: 6/10.61

LEGEND:

R L R

NEW HEAVY DUTY PORTLAND CEMENT
CONCRETE PAVEMENT RE: 2/10.61

NEW LIGHT DUTY ASPHALT PAVEMENT
RE: 1/10.61

NEW RETAINING WALL
RE: STRUCT/ARCH

Checked By

Drawn By

Project Number: Copyright 2020c

ISSUED FOR:

A
1 32 242322212019181716151413121110987654

2 31 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12 13 14 15 16 17 18 19 20 21 22 23 24

B

C

D

E

F

G

H

J

K

L

M

N

P

Q

R

G
as

tin
ge

rW
al

ke
r

A
rc

hi
te

ct
s 

   
  |

   
   

In
te

rio
r 

 D
es

ig
ne

rs
   

   
 |

   
   

C
on

st
ru

ct
io

n 
 M

an
ag

er
s

81
7 

W
ya

nd
ot

te
  K

an
sa

s 
C

ity
 M

is
so

ur
i 6

41
05

  8
16

.4
21

.8
20

0 
 g

as
tin

ge
rw

al
ke

r.c
om

Checked By

Drawn By

Project Number: Copyright 2020c

ISSUED FOR:

A
1 32 242322212019181716151413121110987654

2 31 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12 13 14 15 16 17 18 19 20 21 22 23 24

B

C

D

E

F

G

H

J

K

L

M

N

P

Q

R

Missouri Certificate of Authority: # 001274

G
as

tin
ge

rW
al

ke
r

A
rc

hi
te

ct
s 

   
  |

   
   

In
te

rio
r 

 D
es

ig
ne

rs
   

   
 |

   
   

C
on

st
ru

ct
io

n 
 M

an
ag

er
s

81
7 

W
ya

nd
ot

te
  K

an
sa

s 
C

ity
 M

is
so

ur
i 6

41
05

  8
16

.4
21

.8
20

0 
 g

as
tin

ge
rw

al
ke

r.c
om

C
:\U

se
rs

\a
lu

ca
\D

oc
um

en
ts

\2
02

0.
26

7.
H

er
zo

g 
C

ab
in

s_
al

uc
aR

M
VN

V.
rv

t

Author
Checker

Project
Number

Hoerr Schaudt Landscape Architects
312.492.6501

CIVIL

913.451.1818

STRUCTURAL
PMA Engineering

MECHANICAL, ELECTRICAL, PLUMBING
PKMR Engineers

913.492.2400

LIGHTING DESIGNER
LightWorks, Inc.

816.640.9948

Permit and Bid 04.14.2021

Herzog Foundation

14450 N US Highway 169, Suite L
Smithville, MO 64089

Stanley Herzog
Foundation:

Cabins

LANDSCAPE ARCHITECT

SK Design Group, Inc.

913.831.1262

105 NW 188th Street
Smithville, Missouri 64089

SITE PAVING PLAN

10.11P3



N
 
M

a
i
n

 
S

t
r
e

e
t

5'-7 7/8"

27'-9 1/4"

1 3/8"

5

5

.

0

1

L

1

7

5

5

.

0

1

L

9

5

5

.

0

1

F

1

7

5

5

.

0

1

F

9

5

5

.

0

1

A

1

7

343

327

354

353

344

326

5'-7 7/8"

27'-9 1/4"

1 3/8"

5

5

.

0

1

L

1

7

5

5

.

0

1

L

9

5

5

.

0

1

F

1

7

5

5

.

0

1
F

9

5

5

.

0

1

A

1

7

343327

354

353

344

326

5'-7
 7/

8"

27'
-9 

1/4
"

1 3
/8"

5

5

.

0

1

L

1

7

5

5

.

0

1

L

9

5

5

.

0

1

F

1

7

5

5

.

0

1

F

9

5

5

.

0

1

A

1

7

343

327

354

353

344

326

5'-
7 7

/8"

27
'-9

 1/
4"

1 3
/8"

5

5

.

0

1

L

1

7

5

5

.

0

1

L

9

5

5

.

0

1

F

1

7

5

5

.

0

1

F

9

5

5

.

0

1

A

1

7

343

327

354

353

344

326

945

941

942

943

944

942

943

944

945

944

946

947

948

949

946

947

945

946

945
943

944

940

940

939

93
5

93
6

93
7

93
8

935
936

937

935

932

933

934

93
5

93
4

93
5

93
3

93
4

936

937

935

936

935

936

936

937

930

93
1

932

930

935

931

932

933

934

930

929

936

936

940

941

F.F. ELEV.
938.00

F.F. ELEV.
938.00

F.F. ELEV.
940.20

F.F. ELEV.
937.50

935

934

936

937

938

935

935

933

934

936

937

933

940

941

940
941

FM

FM

FM

FM

FM

FM

FM

FM

933

93
4

ELECTRICAL METER & CABINET'S

APPROXIMATE LOCATION;

VERIFY IN FIELD AND COORDINATE

WITH LANDSCAPE ARCHITECT

(2)

AMELANCHIER CANADENSIS

8`T, CLUMP

(3)

THUJA OCCIDENTALIS `NIGRA`

18`T

(2)
THUJA OCCIDENTALIS `NIGRA`

16`T

(5
)

JUNIPERUS VIRGINIANA `CANAERTII`

10`T

(2)
THUJA OCCIDENTALIS `NIGRA`

18`T

(2)
THUJA OCCIDENTALIS `NIGRA`

16`T

(1)

QUERCUS MACROCARPA

4" Cal

(1)

QUERCUS MACROCARPA

4" Cal

(4)

8`T, CLUMP

AMELANCHIER CANADENSIS

(3
)

10`T

JUNIPERUS VIRGINIANA `CANAERTII`

(3)

CERCIS CANADENSIS

10` TW, MULTI

(1)
QUERCUS MACROCARPA

4" Cal

(2)

CELTIS OCCIDENTALIS

4" Cal

(1)

QUERCUS MACROCARPA

4" C
al

(1)

QUERCUS MACROCARPA

4" Cal

(1)

CERCIS CANADENSIS

10` TW, MULTI

(2)

QUERCUS MACROCARPA

3" Cal

(2)

QUERCUS MACROCARPA

3" Cal

(1
)

CELTIS OCCIDENTALIS

4" C
al

(9)

CRATAEGUS VIRIDIS `WINTER KING`

1" Cal

(3)

1" C
al

CERCIS CANADENSIS

(1)

QUERCUS MACROCARPA

3" Cal

(1)

QUERCUS MACROCARPA

4" Cal

(6)

2" Cal

QUERCUS BICOLOR

(4)

CELTIS OCCIDENTALIS

2" Cal

(3)

1" Cal

CERCIS CANADENSIS

(1)

QUERCUS BICOLOR

2" Cal

(3)

1" C
al

CERCIS CANADENSIS

(3)
CERCIS CANADENSIS

1" Cal

(3)

2" Cal

PLATANUS OCCIDENTALIS

(3)

QUERCUS BICOLOR

2" Cal

(9)

1" Cal

CERCIS CANADENSIS

(2)
CELTIS OCCIDENTALIS

2" Cal

(5)

2" Cal

QUERCUS BICOLOR

(1)

CELTIS OCCIDENTALIS

2" Cal

(1)
PLATANUS OCCIDENTALIS

2" Cal

(1
)

2" Cal

CELTIS OCCIDENTALIS

(2)

2" Cal

PLATANUS OCCIDENTALIS

(1
)

CELTIS OCCIDENTALIS

2" C
al

(3)
CERCIS CANADENSIS

1" Cal

(3)

CERCIS CANADENSIS

1" Cal

(4)
QUERCUS BICOLOR

2" C
al

(1)

2" Cal

QUERCUS BICOLOR

(9)

1" Cal

CERCIS CANADENSIS

(3)

CERCIS CANADENSIS

10` TW, MULTI

(2)

8`T, CLUMP

AMELANCHIER CANADENSIS

(1)
QUERCUS BICOLOR

2" Cal

(3)

CRATAEGUS VIRIDIS `WINTER KING`

1" C
al

(1)

2" Cal

QUERCUS BICOLOR

(1
)

2" Cal

CELTIS OCCIDENTALIS

(3)

1" Cal

CRATAEGUS VIRIDIS `WINTER KING`

(3)

2" Cal

QUERCUS BICOLOR

(9)

1" Cal

CERCIS CANADENSIS

(2)

PLATANUS OCCIDENTALIS

2" C
al

(3)

CERCIS CANADENSIS

1" Cal

DECIDUOUS TREES
BOTANICAL NAME

SIZE QTY
REMARKS

CELTIS OCCIDENTALIS
2" CAL

10

CELTIS OCCIDENTALIS

4" CAL
3

PLATANUS OCCIDENTALIS

2" CAL
8

QUERCUS BICOLOR

2" CAL
25

QUERCUS MACROCARPA

3" CAL
5

QUERCUS MACROCARPA

4" CAL
6

EVERGREEN TREES BOTANICAL NAME

SIZE
QTY REMARKS

JUNIPERUS VIRGINIANA `CANAERTII` 10`T

8

THUJA OCCIDENTALIS `NIGRA` 16`T

4

THUJA OCCIDENTALIS `NIGRA` 18`T

5

FLOWERING TREES
BOTANICAL NAME

SIZE QTY
REMARKS

AMELANCHIER CANADENSIS

8`T, CLUMP 8

CERCIS CANADENSIS

1" CAL
48

CERCIS CANADENSIS

10` TW, MULTI 7

CRATAEGUS VIRIDIS `WINTER KING` 1" CAL
15

PLANT SCHEDULE

Checked By

Drawn By

Project Number:
Copyright 2020

c

ISSUED FOR:

A

1 32 242322212019181716151413121110987654

2 31 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12 13 14 15 16 17 18 19 20 21 22 23 24

B

C

D

E

F

G

H

J

K

L

M

N

P

Q

R

G
as

tin
ge

rW
al

ke
r

A
rc

hi
te

ct
s 

   
  |

   
   

In
te

rio
r 

 D
es

ig
ne

rs
   

   
 |

   
   

C
on

st
ru

ct
io

n 
 M

an
ag

er
s

81
7 

W
ya

nd
ot

te
  K

an
sa

s 
C

ity
 M

is
so

ur
i 6

41
05

  8
16

.4
21

.8
20

0 
 g

as
tin

ge
rw

al
ke

r.c
om

C
:
\
U

s
e

r
s
\
a

l
u

c
a

\
D

o
c
u

m
e

n
t
s
\
2

0
2

0
.
2

6
7

.
H

e
r
z
o

g
 
F

o
u

n
d

a
t
i
o

n
_

a
l
u

c
a

.
r
v
t

Author

Checker

2020.267

AS

MO, AR

Hoerr Schaudt Landscape Architects

312.492.6501

CIVIL

913.451.1818

STRUCTURAL

PMA Engineering

MECHANICAL, ELECTRICAL, PLUMBING

PKMR Engineers

913.492.2400

LIGHTING DESIGNER

LightWorks, Inc.

816.640.9948

Permit and Bid 04.14.2021

Herzog Foundation

14450 N US Highway 169, Suite L

Smithville, MO 64089

Stanley Herzog

Foundation:

Cabins

LANDSCAPE ARCHITECT

SK Design Group, Inc.

913.831.1262

105 NW 188th Street

Smithville, Missouri 64089

14.50

Planting Plan - Trees

5' 20'

10'

40'

0

N

PLANTING PLAN - TREES

1

1' = 20'

NOTES:

1. ALL AREAS ARE INTENDED TO BE IRRIGATED - THE FOUNDATION

IRRIGATION SYSTEM HAS BEEN STUBBED TO TIE INTO THIS PORTION

OF THE PROJECT AND WILL DESIGNED AS SUCH.

2. PRESERVE AS MANY EXISTING TREES ON SITE NOT LOCATED IN

BUILDING FOOTPRINTS OR PARKING LOT. FINAL LOCATION OF

PROPOSED TREES SHOULD BE COORDINATED AND VERIFIED IN

FIELD BY THE LANDSCAPE ARCHITECT

3. PLANTING PLAN IS INTENDED TO BE FLEXIBLE AND PHASED.

PLANTING PLAN ASSUMES PLANTING ON SITE WILL OCCUR OVER

TIME AND MAY CHANGE DEPENDING ON NUMBER OF EXISTING

TREES AND PLANTS PRESERVED.

P4



N
 
M

a
i
n

 
S

t
r
e

e
t

5'-7 7/8"

27'-9 1/4"

1 3/8"

5

5

.

0

1

L

1

7

5

5

.

0

1

L

9

5

5

.

0

1

F

1

7

5

5

.

0

1

F

9

5

5

.

0

1

A

1

7

343

327

354

353

344

326

5'-7 7/8"

27'-9 1/4"

1 3/8"

5

5

.

0

1

L

1

7

5

5

.

0

1

L

9

5

5

.

0

1

F

1

7

5

5

.

0

1
F

9

5

5

.

0

1

A

1

7

343327

354

353

344

326

5'-7
 7/

8"

27'
-9 

1/4
"

1 3
/8"

5

5

.

0

1

L

1

7

5

5

.

0

1

L

9

5

5

.

0

1

F

1

7

5

5

.

0

1

F

9

5

5

.

0

1

A

1

7

343

327

354

353

344

326

5'-
7 7

/8"

27
'-9

 1/
4"

1 3
/8"

5

5

.

0

1

L

1

7

5

5

.

0

1

L

9

5

5

.

0

1

F

1

7

5

5

.

0

1

F

9

5

5

.

0

1

A

1

7

343

327

354

353

344

326

945

941

942

943

944

942

943

944

945

944

946

947

948

949

946

947

945

946

945
943

944

940

940

939

93
5

93
6

93
7

93
8

935
936

937

935

932

933

934

93
5

93
4

93
5

93
3

93
4

936

937

935

936

935

936

936

937

930

93
1

932

930

935

931

932

933

934

930

929

936

936

940

941

F.F. ELEV.
938.00

F.F. ELEV.
938.00

F.F. ELEV.
940.20

F.F. ELEV.
937.50

935

934

936

937

938

935

935

933

934

936

937

933

940

941

940
941

FM

FM

FM

FM

FM

FM

FM

FM

933

93
4

4` O
C

(21)

ILEX VERTICILLATA `WINTER RED`

24", 5 Gal

5` O.C.

(9)

HAMAMELIS VERNALIS

30", 7 Gal

5` O.C.

(7
)

HAMAMELIS VERNALIS

30", 7 Gal

5` O.C.

(9)

HAMAMELIS VERNALIS

30", 7 Gal

6` OC

(11)

VIBURNUM PRUNIFOLIUM

36" BB

5` O.C.

(7)

HAMAMELIS VERNALIS

30", 7 Gal

5` O.C.

(3)

HAMAMELIS VERNALIS

30", 7 Gal

6` OC

(13)
VIBURNUM PRUNIFOLIUM

36" BB

4` OC

(51)

ILEX VERTICILLATA `WINTER RED`

24", 5 Gal

6` O
C

(12)

VIBURNUM PRUNIFOLIUM

36" BB

6` OC

(35)
VIBURNUM PRUNIFOLIUM

36" BB

(42)

24", 5 Gal

ILEX VERTICILLATA `WINTER RED`

4` O
C

4` O
C

(37)

ILEX VERTICILLATA `WINTER RED`

24", 5 Gal

6` OC

(18)

VIBURNUM PRUNIFOLIUM

36" BB

5` O.C.

(9)
HAMAMELIS VERNALIS

30", 7 Gal

5` O.C.

(12)

HAMAMELIS VERNALIS

30", 7 Gal

4` OC

(24)

ILEX VERTICILLATA `WINTER RED`

24", 5 Gal

5` O.C.

(4)

HAMAMELIS VERNALIS

30", 7 Gal

(9)

30", 7 Gal

HAMAMELIS VERNALIS

5` O.C.

5` O.C.

(4)

HAMAMELIS VERNALIS

30", 7 Gal

TURF SOIL (780 sf)

TURF SOIL (329 sf)

SEED MIX (12,902 sf)

ASC TUB

AVE SAT

DAL CAN

DAL PUR

ERA SPE

FES OVI

KOE MAC

MON FIS

PEN DIG

SYM OOL

VER STR

PLANTING MIX (761 sf)

(106) AMS HUB

(71) AST DIV

(53) ATH FIL

(36) EUP PUR

(53) MER VIR

(36) POL ACR

(53) SOL RUG

PLANTING MIX (360 sf)

(50) AMS HUB

(34) AST DIV

(25) ATH FIL

(17) EUP PUR

(25) MER VIR

(17) POL ACR

(25) SOL RUG

ROADSIDE SEED MIX (953 sf)

EXISTING TO REMAIN (7,186 sf)

TURF SOIL (646 sf)

PLANTING MIX (5,009 sf)

(695) AMS HUB

(463) AST DIV

(348) ATH FIL

(232) EUP PUR

(348) MER VIR

(232) POL ACR

(348) SOL RUG

SEED MIX (4,408 sf)

ASC TUB

AVE SAT

DAL CAN

DAL PUR

ERA SPE

FES OVI

KOE MAC

MON FIS

PEN DIG

SYM OOL

VER STR

SEED MIX (5,718 sf)

ASC TUB

AVE SAT

DAL CAN

DAL PUR

ERA SPE

FES OVI

KOE MAC

MON FIS

PEN DIG

SYM OOL

VER STR

ROADSIDE SEED MIX (5,939 sf)

PER PLAN

(1)

HYDRANGEA ANOMALA PETIOLARIS

7 Gal, Trellised

PER PLAN

(1)

HYDRANGEA ANOMALA PETIOLARIS

7 Gal, Trellised

PER PLAN

(1
)

HYDRANGEA ANOMALA PETIOLARIS

7 Gal, Trellised

PER PLAN

(1)

HYDRANGEA ANOMALA PETIOLARIS

7 Gal, Trellised

(6)

30", 7 Gal

HAMAMELIS VERNALIS

5` O.C.

ROADSIDE SEED MIX (9,344 sf)

SEED MIX (10,819 sf)

ASC TUB

AVE SAT

DAL CAN

DAL PUR

ERA SPE

FES OVI

KOE MAC

MON FIS

PEN DIG

SYM OOL

VER STR

ELECTRICAL METER & CABINET'S

APPROXIMATE LOCATION;

VERIFY IN FIELD AND COORDINATE

WITH LANDSCAPE ARCHITECT

PLANTING MIX

6,130 SF

AMSONIA HUBRICHTII / ARKANSAS BLUESTAR

850
2" X 5" PLUG, 18" OC 30% @ 18" oc

ASTER DIVARICATUS / WHITE WOOD ASTER

567
2" X 5" PLUG, 18" OC 20% @ 18" oc

ATHYRIUM FILIX-FEMINA `LADY IN RED` / LADY IN RED LADY FERN
425

2" X 5" PLUG, 18" OC 15% @ 18" oc

EUPATORIUM PURPUREUM `LITTLE JOE` / DWARF JOE-PYE WEED
284

2" X 5" PLUG, 18" OC 10% @ 18" oc

MERTENSIA VIRGINICA / VIRGINIA BLUEBELLS

425
2" X 5" PLUG, 18" OC 15% @ 18" oc

POLYSTICHUM ACROSTICHOIDES / CHRISTMAS FERN

284
2" X 5" PLUG, 18" OC 10% @ 18" oc

SOLIDAGO RUGOSA `FIREWORKS` / FIREWORKS WRINKLELEAF GOLDENROD
425

2" X 5" PLUG, 18" OC 15% @ 18" oc

SEED MIX

33,847 SF

ASCLEPIAS TUBEROSA / BUTTERFLY MILKWEED

2.7 OUNCES

AVENA SATIVA / COMMON OAT

263 OUNCES

DALEA CANDIDA / WHITE PRAIRIE CLOVER

2.7 OUNCES

DALEA PURPUREA / PURPLE PRAIRIE CLOVER

10.6 OUNCES

ERAGROSTIS SPECTABILIS / PURPLE LOVE GRASS

1.4 OUNCES

FESTUCA OVINA VAR. DURIUSCULA / SHEEP FESCUE

80 OUNCES

KOELERIA MACRANTHA / PRAIRIE JUNEGRASS

2.7 OUNCES

MONARDA FISTULOSA / BERGAMOT

1.4 OUNCES

PENSTEMON DIGITALIS / BEARDTONGUE

3 OUNCES

SYMPHYOTRICHUM OOLENTANGIENSE / AZURE ASTER

1.4 OUNCES

VERBENA STRICTA / HOARY VERVAIN

5.3 OUNCES

ROADSIDE SEED MIX

16,236 SF

75% FESTUCA ARUNDINACEA @ 7-9 LBS PLS/ 1000SF  25% SCHIZACHYRIUM

SCOPARIUM @ 0.5-1 LBS PLS/1000SF

NOTE: MOW AS NECESSARY TO MAINTAIN HEIGHT OF APPROXIMATELY

12-18”.

NOTE: DRILL SEEDED MIX.  EROSION BLANKET SHALL BE USED ON SLOPES

GREATER THAN 12%

-

EXISTING TO REMAIN

7,186 SF

-

TURF SOIL

1,755 SF

-

GROUNDCOVER PLANT SCHEDULE

DECIDUOUS SHRUBS
BOTANICAL NAME

SIZE SPACING
SPACING QTY REMARKS

HAMAMELIS VERNALIS 30", 7 GAL

5` O.C.
60" o.c. 79

ILEX VERTICILLATA `WINTER RED` 24", 5 GAL 4` OC
48" o.c. 175

VIBURNUM PRUNIFOLIUM

36" BB
6` OC 72" o.c.

89

VINE/ESPALIER BOTANICAL NAME
SIZE

SPACING SPACING
QTY REMARKS

HYDRANGEA ANOMALA PETIOLARIS
7 GAL, TRELLISED PER PLAN 48" o.c. 4

PLANT SCHEDULE

Checked By

Drawn By

Project Number:
Copyright 2020

c

ISSUED FOR:

A

1 32 242322212019181716151413121110987654

2 31 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12 13 14 15 16 17 18 19 20 21 22 23 24

B

C

D

E

F

G

H

J

K

L

M

N

P

Q

R

G
as

tin
ge

rW
al

ke
r

A
rc

hi
te

ct
s 

   
  |

   
   

In
te

rio
r 

 D
es

ig
ne

rs
   

   
 |

   
   

C
on

st
ru

ct
io

n 
 M

an
ag

er
s

81
7 

W
ya

nd
ot

te
  K

an
sa

s 
C

ity
 M

is
so

ur
i 6

41
05

  8
16

.4
21

.8
20

0 
 g

as
tin

ge
rw

al
ke

r.c
om

C
:
\
U

s
e

r
s
\
a

l
u

c
a

\
D

o
c
u

m
e

n
t
s
\
2

0
2

0
.
2

6
7

.
H

e
r
z
o

g
 
F

o
u

n
d

a
t
i
o

n
_

a
l
u

c
a

.
r
v
t

Author

Checker

2020.267

AS

MO, AR

Hoerr Schaudt Landscape Architects

312.492.6501

CIVIL

913.451.1818

STRUCTURAL

PMA Engineering

MECHANICAL, ELECTRICAL, PLUMBING

PKMR Engineers

913.492.2400

LIGHTING DESIGNER

LightWorks, Inc.

816.640.9948

Permit and Bid 04.14.2021

Herzog Foundation

14450 N US Highway 169, Suite L

Smithville, MO 64089

Stanley Herzog

Foundation:

Cabins

LANDSCAPE ARCHITECT

SK Design Group, Inc.

913.831.1262

105 NW 188th Street

Smithville, Missouri 64089

NOTES:

1. ALL AREAS ARE INTENDED TO BE IRRIGATED - THE FOUNDATION

IRRIGATION SYSTEM HAS BEEN STUBBED TO TIE INTO THIS PORTION

OF THE PROJECT AND WILL DESIGNED AS SUCH.

2. PRESERVE AS MANY EXISTING TREES ON SITE NOT LOCATED IN

BUILDING FOOTPRINTS OR PARKING LOT. FINAL LOCATION OF

PROPOSED TREES SHOULD BE COORDINATED AND VERIFIED IN

FIELD BY THE LANDSCAPE ARCHITECT

3. PLANTING PLAN IS INTENDED TO BE FLEXIBLE AND PHASED.

PLANTING PLAN ASSUMES PLANTING ON SITE WILL OCCUR OVER

TIME AND MAY CHANGE DEPENDING ON NUMBER OF EXISTING

TREES AND PLANTS PRESERVED.

14.51

Planting Plan - Understory

5' 20'

10'

40'

0

N

PLANTING PLAN - UNDERSTORY

1

1' = 20' P5



P6



P7



P8



Level 1 - Cabin
0"

T.O. Low Volume
8' - 10"

Fiber-cement panel (074646)

Fiber-cement trim (074646)

12
" /

 1
2"

12" / 12"

3" round prefinished sheet metal 
downspout, (074113) daylight into 
collection basin per Civil

Entry boardwalk. Refer to Landscape

Limestone Veneer (044311)

Grade. Refer to Civil

5" Half round gutter to match roof 
(074113)

Standing seam metal roof (074113)

Flat seam metal cladding (074113)

Standing seam metal roof (074113)

Canopy, Refer to Structural. 
Paint frame PT-3

Door per Plans

Wall sconce. Refer to Electrical

4" x 4" metal mesh in 2" x 2" steel tube frame.
Paint PT-3

Standing seam metal wall cladding (074113)

EQEQ

typ.

2' - 0"

EQEQ

typ.

2' - 0"

Prefinished sheet metal, finish to match door (074113)

12" pin mounted cabin address. 
Reference site plan for cabin numbers

1" / 12"

Level 1 - Cabin
0"

T.O. Low Volume
8' - 10"

Fiber-cement panel (074646)

Fiber-cement trim (074646)

3" round prefinished sheet metal 
downspout, (074113) daylight into 
collection basin per Civil

Entry boardwalk. Refer to Landscape

Limestone Veneer (044311)

Grade. Refer to Civil

5" Half round gutter to match roof 
(074113)

Standing seam metal roof (074113)

Canopy, Refer to Structural. 
Paint frame PT-3

Snow guard (074113)

EQ EQ

typ.

2' - 0" EQ

Entry boardwalk. Refer to Landscape

Wood louver in 
panelized wood frame.

Wood framing. 
Refer to Structural

Screen in panelized 
wood frame.

Corrugated metal roof 
(074113)

Hold bottom of screen 
6" above grade

5'
 -

 4
"

8'
 -

 6
"

8"

Fiber-cement panel joint

Level 1 - Cabin
0"

T.O. Footing
-6' - 0"

T.O. Low Volume
8' - 10"

3" round prefinished sheet metal 
downspout, (074113) daylight into 
collection basin per Civil

Grade. Refer to Civil

5" Half round gutter to match roof 
(074113)

Standing seam metal roof (074113)

Flat seam metal cladding (074113)

Standing seam metal roof (074113)

Standing seam metal 
wall cladding (074113)

Fiber-cement panel 
(074646)

Fiber-cement trim 
(074646)

12
" /

 1
2"

1" / 12"

12" / 12"

EQ EQ

typ.

2' - 0"

EQ EQ

typ.

2' - 0"

12" / 12"

1" / 12"

12
" /

 1
2"

Wood louver in 
panelized wood frame.

Wood framing. 
Refer to Structural

Screen in panelized 
wood frame.

Corrugated metal roof 
(074113)

Hold bottom of screen 6" 
above grade

8"

Checked By

Drawn By

Project Number: Copyright 2020c

ISSUED FOR:

A

1 32 242322212019181716151413121110987654

2 31 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12 13 14 15 16 17 18 19 20 21 22 23 24

B

C

D

E

F

G

H

J

K

L

M

N

P

Q

R

Missouri Certificate of Authority: #ARC000344

G
a
s
ti
n
g
e
rW

a
lk
e
r

A
rc

h
it
e
c
ts

  
  
  
|
  
  
  
In

te
ri

o
r 

 D
e

si
g

n
e

rs
  
  
  
 |

  
  
  
C

o
n

st
ru

c
ti
o

n
  
M

a
n

a
g

e
rs

8
1
7
 W

ya
n

d
o

tt
e
  
K

a
n

sa
s 

C
ity

 M
is

so
u

ri
 6

4
1
0
5
  
8
1
6
.4

2
1
.8

2
0
0
  
g

a
st

in
g

e
rw

a
lk

e
r.

c
o

m
 

2
0
2
0

.2
6

7
.H

e
rz

o
g
 C

a
b
in

s
 C

E
N

T
R

A
L

_
d
e
ta

c
h

e
d
.r

v
t

40.01
Building Elevations

Author

Checker

2020.267b

Hoerr Schaudt Landscape Architects

312.492.6501

CIVIL

913.451.1818

STRUCTURAL

PMA Engineering

MECHANICAL, ELECTRICAL, PLUMBING

PKMR Engineers

913.492.2400

LIGHTING DESIGNER

LightWorks, Inc.

816.640.9948

Planning Commission 05.28.2021

14450 N US Highway 169, Suite L

Smithville, MO 64089

Stanley Herzog
Foundation:

Cabins

LANDSCAPE ARCHITECT

SK Design Group, Inc.

913.831.1262

105 NW 188th Street
Smithville, Missouri 64089

1/4" = 1'-0"30.01

A1 Building Elevation - Entry

1/4" = 1'-0"30.01

J1 Building Elevation - Side

1/4" = 1'-0"30.01

A13 Building Elevation - Porch P9


	Agenda 6-8-21 - new header
	Planning Commission 5-11-21
	#5 Mitchell's Final Plat Staff Report
	#5 Mitchell's Greenhouse and Nursery  Final Plat owners notice
	#5 Mitchell's Greenhouse REV REPLAT
	#7 Kylee Acres Staff Report
	#7 Kylee Acres Final Plat owners notice
	#7 Kylee Acres Final Plat
	#9  Rezoning 18420 Eagle Pkwy - Staff Report
	STAFF REPORT

	#9 18420 Eagle Pkwy Rezoning
	Finding of Facts

	#11 Lakeside Farms Preliminary Plat Staff Report
	STAFF REPORT

	#9 Lakeside Farms (formerly Eagle Heights) Rezoning and Preliminary Plat owner's notice
	#11 PRELIMINARY PLAT FOR LAKESIDE FARMS-5-27-21
	#12 Medical Marijuana Facility Site Plan Staff Report
	#12 2021-05-27 - CPC of MO Smithville Cultivation
	Sheets
	A200 - EXTERIOR ELEVATIONS
	A201 - EXTERIOR ELEVATIONS


	#12 CPC Site Layout Parking Util
	Sheets and Views
	L1.0 LANDSCAPE PLAN


	#13 KCI RV Site Plan Amendment Staff Report
	#13 KCI RV Storage (05-18-21)
	#14 Herzog Cabins Staff Report
	#14 2021-0528 Planning Commission Cabins
	Sheets
	00.00 - Cover Sheet and General Information
	40.01 - Building Elevations





